
Monday, September 28, 2015 AGENDA Page 1 

 

 
BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL AGENDA COMMITTEE 

SPECIAL MEETING 

BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 28, 2015 

2:30 P.M. 

6th Floor Conference Room, 2180 Milvia Street 
Committee Members:  

Mayor Bates, Councilmembers Linda Maio and Susan Wengraf 
(Alternate: Councilmember Anderson) 

 

AGENDA 
 

1. Roll Call 

2. Public Comment  

3. Approval of Minutes: September 21, 2015 

4. Review and Approve draft agenda: 
a. 10/13/15 – 7:00 p.m. Regular City Council Meeting 

1. Referred items 
b. Adjournments in memory of -  

5. Council Items: 
a. Council Worksessions 
b. Council Referrals to Agenda Committee  
c. Land Use Calendar 

6. Adjournment – next meeting Tuesday, October 13, 2015 



Monday, September 28, 2015 AGENDA Page 2 

Additional items may be added to the draft agenda per Council Rules of 
Procedure. 

Rules of Procedure Resolution No. 67,178-N.S., Article III, C3c - Agenda - Submission of Time Critical 
Items 

Time Critical Items.  A Time Critical item is defined as a matter that is considered urgent by the sponsor 
and that has a deadline for action that is prior to the next meeting of the Council and for which a report 
prepared by the City Manager, Auditor, Mayor or council member is received by the City Clerk after 
established deadlines and is not included on the Agenda Committee’s published agenda.   

The City Clerk shall bring any reports submitted as Time Critical to the meeting of the Agenda Committee.  
If the Agenda Committee finds the matter to meet the definition of Time Critical, the Agenda Committee 
may place the matter on the Agenda on either the Consent or Action Calendar.  

The City Clerk shall not accept any item past the adjournment of the Agenda Committee meeting for which 
the agenda that the item is requested to appear on has been approved. 

This is a meeting of the Berkeley City Council Agenda Committee. Since a quorum of the Berkeley City 
Council may actually be present to discuss matters with the Council Agenda Committee, this meeting is 
being noticed as a special meeting of the Berkeley City Council as well as a Council Agenda Committee 
meeting. 

Written communications addressed to the Agenda Committee and submitted to the City Clerk Department 
by 5:00 p.m. the Friday before the Committee meeting, will be distributed to the Committee prior to the 
meeting.  After the deadline for submission, residents must provide 10 copies of written communications 
to the City Clerk at the time of the meeting. 

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953.  Any 
member of the public may attend this meeting.  Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to 
Mark Numainville, City Clerk, 981-6900. 
 
COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION: 
This meeting is being held in a wheelchair accessible location.  
To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or 
services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at 981-6346(V) or 981-7075 (TDD) at least three 
business days before the meeting date. 
Attendees at public meetings are reminded that other attendees may be sensitive to various scents, 
whether natural or manufactured, in products and materials. Please help the City respect these needs. 

 

 
I hereby certify that the agenda for this special meeting of the Berkeley City Council was posted at the 
display case located near the walkway in front of Council Chambers, 2134 Martin Luther King Jr. Way, as 
well as on the City’s website, on September 24, 2015. 

 
Mark Numainville, City Clerk 

 
 

 

 



Monday, September 21, 2015 MINUTES Page 1 

BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL AGENDA COMMITTEE 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 21, 2015 

2:30 P.M. 

6th Floor Conference Room, 2180 Milvia Street 
Committee Members:  

Mayor Bates, Councilmembers Linda Maio and Susan Wengraf 
(Alternate: Councilmember Anderson) 

 
1. Roll Call: 2:30 p.m.  Present: Bates, Maio, Wengraf. 

2. Public Comment: 0 speakers.  

3. M/S/C (Maio/Wengraf) to approve the Minutes of September 14, 2015 

4. Review and Approve draft agendas: 
a. M/S/C (Bates/Wengraf) to approve the 10/6/15 – 5:30 p.m. Special City 

Council Meeting with the title revised to include “Tasers” 
b. M/S/C (Bates/Maio) to approve the 10/6/15 – 7:00 p.m. Regular City 

Council Meeting revised to reflect the following: 
 Item Added: City Sponsorship of the Fourth Annual Sunday Streets (Capitelli) 
 Item Added: Staff item regarding cell phone point of sale warning added due to 

district court order  
 Item 8 Referral to the City Manager: Prioritize Climate Action Plan’s Policy to 

Redesign/Rebuild the Berkeley Transfer Station and Material Recovery Facility into a 
State of the Art Zero Waste Facility (Worthington) – Moved to Action Calendar 

 Item 11 Green Affordable Housing Package (Droste) – Revised Item Submitted. 
1. Referred items 

c. Adjournments in memory of - None 

5. Council Items: 
a. Council Worksessions 
b. Council Referrals to Agenda Committee  
c. Land Use Calendar 

6. Adjourned at 2:37 p.m. 

 
Mark Numainville, City Clerk 

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
3



 



D R AF T  AG E N D A  

 
BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 13, 2015 
7:00 PM 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS - 2134 MARTIN LUTHER KING JR. WAY 
TOM BATES, MAYOR 
Councilmembers: 

DISTRICT 1 – LINDA MAIO  DISTRICT 5 – LAURIE CAPITELLI 
DISTRICT 2 – DARRYL MOORE  DISTRICT 6 – SUSAN WENGRAF 
DISTRICT 3 – MAX ANDERSON  DISTRICT 7 – KRISS WORTHINGTON 
DISTRICT 4 – JESSE ARREGUIN  DISTRICT 8 – LORI DROSTE 

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953.   
Any member of the public may attend this meeting.  Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to 
Mark Numainville, City Clerk, 981-6900. 

The City Council may take action related to any subject listed on the Agenda. The Mayor may exercise a 
two minute speaking limitation to comments from Councilmembers.  Meetings will adjourn at 11:00 p.m. - 
any items outstanding at that time will be carried over to a date/time to be specified.

Preliminary Matters 

Roll Call:  

Ceremonial Matters: In addition to those items listed on the agenda, the Mayor may add additional 
ceremonial matters. 

City Manager Comments:  The City Manager may make announcements or provide information to 
the City Council in the form of an oral report.  The Council will not take action on such items but may 
request the City Manager place a report on a future agenda for discussion. 

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters: Persons will be selected by lottery to address 
matters not on the Council agenda.  If five or fewer persons submit speaker cards for the lottery, each 
person selected will be allotted two minutes each.  If more than five persons submit speaker cards for the 
lottery, up to ten persons will be selected to address matters not on the Council agenda and each person 
selected will be allotted one minute each. Persons wishing to address the Council on matters not on the 
Council agenda during the initial ten-minute period for such comment, must submit a speaker card to the 
City Clerk in person at the meeting location and prior to commencement of that meeting. The remainder 
of the speakers wishing to address the Council on non-agenda items will be heard at the end of the 
agenda. Speaker cards are not required for this second round of public comment on non-agenda matters. 

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
4a



 

Tuesday, October 13, 2015 DRAFT AGENDA Page 2 

Public Comment on Consent Calendar and Information Items Only: The Council will 
take public comment on any items that are either on the amended Consent Calendar or the Information 
Calendar.  Up to three speakers will be entitled to two minutes each to speak in opposition to or support 
of a Consent Calendar Item.  The Presiding Officer will ask additional persons in the audience to stand to 
demonstrate their respective opposition to or support of the item. 

In the event that there are more than three persons wishing to speak either in opposition to or support of 
a “Consent” item, the Presiding Officer will move the item to the beginning of the Action Calendar.  Prior 
to moving the item, the Presiding Officer will fully inform those persons in the audience of this process.  

Additional information regarding public comment by City of Berkeley employees and interns: Employees 
and interns of the City of Berkeley, although not required, are encouraged to identify themselves as such, 
the department in which they work and state whether they are speaking as an individual or in their official 
capacity when addressing the Council in open session or workshops. 

Consent Calendar 
The Council will first determine whether to move items on the agenda for action or “Information” to the 
“Consent Calendar”, or move “Consent Calendar” items to action.  Items that remain on the “Consent 
Calendar” are voted on in one motion as a group.  “Information” items are not discussed or acted upon at 
the Council meeting unless they are moved to “Action” or “Consent”. 

After hearing from public speakers regarding items remaining on the Consent Calendar, any Council 
Member may move any Information or Consent item to “Action”, however no additional items can be 
moved onto the Consent Calendar at that point.  Following this, the Council will vote on the items 
remaining on the Consent Calendar in one motion. 

For items removed from the Consent Calendar to the Action Calendar for additional public comment, at 
the time the matter is taken up during the Action Calendar, public comment will be limited to persons who 
have not previously addressed that item during the Consent Calendar related public comment period. 

1. Mental Health Services Act –Memorandum of Understanding with Alameda 
County Behavioral Health Care Services to Fund a Wellness Center 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the City of Berkeley and Alameda 
County Behavioral Health Care Services (BHCS) for the term July 1, 2015 through 
June 31, 2018 for an expenditure of up to $300,000 per fiscal year to fund the 
creation and operation of a Mental Health Wellness Center (Wellness Center) 
located in the City of Berkeley or Albany. 
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Kelly Wallace, Health, Housing and Community Services, 981-5400 

2. Approval of Three Additional Meetings for Children, Youth and Recreation 
Commission in Calendar Year 
From: Children, Youth and Recreation Commission 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution requesting Council approval of three 
additional meetings for the Children, Youth, and Recreation Commission in calendar 
year 2015. 
Financial Implications: Staff time 
Contact: Christina Erickson, Commission Secretary, 981-6700



Council Consent Items 

Tuesday, October 13, 2015 DRAFT AGENDA Page 3 

3. Urging the State Legislature and Governor to repeal the Costa-Hawkins Rental 
Housing Act 
From: Councilmember Arreguin 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution urging the California State Legislature and 
Governor to adopt legislation repealing the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act, Civil 
Code Sections 1954.50-1954.535. 
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Councilmember, District 4, 981-7140 

4. Endorse the Internet for All Proposal to the Federal Communications  
Commission (FCC) to Secure an Affordable Broadband Lifeline Program for All 
Low-income Households 
From: Councilmember Worthington 
Recommendation: Endorse the Internet for All proposal to the Federal 
Communications Commission (FCC) to secure an affordable Broadband Lifeline 
Program for all low-income households. 
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170 

5. Hate Crime Prevention Response Plan 
From: Councilmember Worthington 
Recommendation: Create a hate crimes prevention response plan. 
Financial Implications: Unknown 
Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170 

6. Proclamation in Honor of Spirit Day and endorse the Campaign to Go Purple in 
a Stand Against Bullying and Show Support for LGBT Youth 
From: Councilmember Worthington 
Recommendation: Adopt a proclamation in Honor of Spirit Day and endorse the 
Campaign to Go Purple in a Stand Against Bullying and Show Support for LGBT 
Youth. 
Financial Implications: Minimal 
Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170 

7. City Manager Referral: Constitutional questions raised about DBA 
Ambassadors taking down fliers that appear to comply with Berkeley 
Municipal Code 
From: Councilmember Worthington 
Recommendation: City Manager referral: Constitutional questions raised about 
Downtown Berkeley Association (DBA) Ambassadors taking down fliers that appear 
to comply with Berkeley Municipal Code. 
Financial Implications: Minimal 
Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170 



Council Consent Items 

Tuesday, October 13, 2015 DRAFT AGENDA Page 4 

8. City Manager Referral: Support for Veteran's Day Event 
From: Councilmembers Worthington and Anderson 
Recommendation: Refer to the City Manager to support Veteran's Day event by re-
establishing the link to the Vietnam Veterans Electronic Memorial and cleaning the 
Veterans Memorial Building steps and plaques. 
Financial Implications: Minimal 
Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170 

9. Supporting the Exoneration of Port Chicago Sailors 
From: Councilmembers Worthington, Anderson, and Moore 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution supporting the exoneration of Port Chicago 
sailors. 
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170 

Action Calendar 
The public may comment on each item listed on the agenda for action as the item is taken up.  Where an 
item was moved from the Consent Calendar to Action no speaker who has already spoken on that item 
would be entitled to speak to that item again. 

The Presiding Officer will request that persons wishing to speak line up at the podium to determine the 
number of persons interested in speaking at that time. Up to ten (10) speakers may speak for two 
minutes.  If there are more than ten persons interested in speaking, the Presiding Officer may limit the 
public comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker. Speakers are permitted to yield their time to 
one other speaker, however no one speaker shall have more than four minutes.  The Presiding Officer 
may, with the consent of persons representing both sides of an issue, allocate a block of time to each 
side to present their issue. 

Action items may be reordered at the discretion of the Chair with the consent of Council. 

Action Calendar – Public Hearings 
Staff shall introduce the public hearing item and present their comments.  This is followed by five-minute 
presentations each by the appellant and applicant.  The Presiding Officer will request that persons 
wishing to speak, line up at the podium to be recognized and to determine the number of persons 
interested in speaking at that time. 

Up to ten (10) speakers may speak for two minutes.  If there are more than ten persons interested in 
speaking, the Presiding Officer may limit the public comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker. 
Speakers are permitted to yield their time to one other speaker, however no one speaker shall have more 
than four minutes. The Presiding Officer may with the consent of persons representing both sides of an 
issue allocate a block of time to each side to present their issue. 

Each member of the City Council shall verbally disclose all ex parte contacts concerning the subject of 
the hearing. Councilmembers shall also submit a report of such contacts in writing prior to the 
commencement of the hearing. Written reports shall be available for public review in the office of the City 
Clerk. 



Action Calendar – Public Hearing 

Tuesday, October 13, 2015 DRAFT AGENDA Page 5 

10. ZAB Appeal: 2115 San Pablo Avenue 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and, upon conclusion, adopt a 
Resolution affirming the decision of the Zoning Adjustments Board (ZAB) to deny 
Use Permit No. 2013-0047, which involved the expansion of alcoholic beverage 
service now provided at Acme Bar & Company into unused exterior space abutting 
residential uses in an R-2 Residential District. 
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Eric Angstadt, Planning and Development, 981-7400 

Action Calendar – New Business 

11. a. Berkeley Lead Poison Prevention and Control 
From: Community Environmental Advisory Commission 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution directing the City Manager to (1) implement 
an enforcement program per SB 460 of 2002 for lead paint hazards; (2) annually 
remind pediatricians and other medical providers to regularly test children between 
the ages of one and six for blood lead levels, and to report all blood lead levels 
above 5 microgram per deciliter, or if there is an increase of 1 microgram per 
deciliter to City Public Health for further investigation ; and (3) evaluate the program 
after a year of implementationand present the findings to the Community 
Environmental Advisory Commission (CEAC). 
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Nabil Al-Hadithy, Commission Secretary, 981-7400 

b. Berkeley Lead Poison Prevention and Control 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Refer to the Community Environmental Advisory Commission 
(CEAC) a request to conduct a thorough review of the Alameda County Healthy 
Homes Department (ACHHD) Lead Poisoning Prevention Program performance 
measures and budget for 2010-2015 for their services in Berkeley as well as their 
projected activities and budget for the 2015/16 year. Take no action at this time on 
CEAC’s recommendation in the October 13, 2015 report to implement an 
enforcement program per SB 460 of 2002 for lead paint hazards. In lieu of CEAC’s 
second recommendation: 
A. Annually remind Berkeley health care providers of the importance of regularly 
screening children between the ages of 6 months and 6 years for risk of lead 
poisoning, and obtaining blood lead levels at 12 and 24 months of age for those at 
risk, in accordance with guidelines of the American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP), 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), and California Department of 
Public Health (CDPH) Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention Branch (CLPPB). 
B. Continue providing public health lead poisoning prevention information, 
education, and evaluation by a Public Health Nurse for families of all children whose 
blood lead level exceeds the CDC’s reference level (currently 5 µg/dL). 
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Eric Angstadt, Planning and Development, 981-7400 

 



Information Reports 

Tuesday, October 13, 2015 DRAFT AGENDA Page 6 

12. Update: City Water Conservation and Use Reduction 
From: City Manager 
Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, 981-6700; Eric Angstadt, 
Planning and Development, 981-7400; Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300 

13. Audit Response - Police Injury Prevention 
From: City Manager 
Contact: Michael Meehan, Police, 981-5900 

Public Comment – Items Not Listed on the Agenda –  

Adjournment 
NOTICE CONCERNING YOUR LEGAL RIGHTS: If you object to a decision by the City Council to 
approve or deny a use permit or variance for a project the following requirements and restrictions apply:  
1) No lawsuit challenging a City decision to deny (Code Civ. Proc. §1094.6(b)) or approve (Gov. Code 
65009(c)(5)) a use permit or variance may be filed more than 90 days after the date the Notice of 
Decision of the action of the City Council is mailed. Any lawsuit not filed within that 90-day period will be 
barred.  2) In any lawsuit that may be filed against a City Council decision to approve or deny a use 
permit or variance, the issues and evidence will be limited to those raised by you or someone else, orally 
or in writing, at a public hearing or prior to the close of the last public hearing on the project. 
 
Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on Cable B-TV (Channel 33),  
via internet accessible video stream at http://www.cityofberkeley.info/video and KPFB Radio 89.3. 
Archived indexed video streams are available at http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil. 
Channel 33 rebroadcasts the following Wednesday at 9:00 a.m. and Sunday at 9:00 a.m. 

 
Communications to the City Council are public record and will become part of the City’s electronic 
records, which are accessible through the City’s website. Please note: e-mail addresses, names, 
addresses, and other contact information are not required, but if included in any communication 
to the City Council, will become part of the public record. If you do not want your e-mail address or 
any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service 
or in person to the City Clerk Department at 2180 Milvia Street. If you do not want your contact 
information included in the public record, please do not include that information in your communication. 
Please contact the City Clerk Department for further information. 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this agenda 
will be made available for public inspection at the public counter at the City Clerk Department located on 
the first floor of City Hall located at 2180 Milvia Street as well as posted on the City's website at 
http://www.cityofberkeley.info. 

Agendas and agenda reports may be accessed via the Internet at 
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil 

and may be read at reference desks at the following locations: 

City Clerk Department Libraries: 
2180 Milvia Street Main - 2090 Kittredge Street 
Tel:  510-981-6900 Claremont Branch – 2940 Benvenue 
TDD:  510-981-6903 West Branch – 1125 University 
Fax:  510-981-6901 North Branch – 1170 The Alameda 
Email:  clerk@cityofberkeley.info South Branch – 1901 Russell 

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/video
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil


 

Tuesday, October 13, 2015 DRAFT AGENDA Page 7 

COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION: 
This meeting is being held in a wheelchair accessible location.  
To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or 
services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at 981-6346(V) or 981-7075 (TDD) at least three 
business days before the meeting date. 
 
Attendees at public meetings are reminded that other attendees may be sensitive to various scents, 
whether natural or manufactured, in products and materials.  Please help the City respect these needs. 
 

 
 

Captioning services are provided at the meeting, on B-TV, and on the Internet.  In addition, assisted 
listening devices for the hearing impaired are available from the City Clerk prior to the meeting, and are to 
be returned before the end of the meeting. 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 



 



 
Children, Youth and  
Recreation Commission 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
October 13, 2015 

 
To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

From: Dee Williams-Ridley, Interim City Manager 

Submitted by: Rebecca Gebhart, Chair, Children, Youth and Recreation Commission 

Subject: Approval of Three Additional Meetings for Children, Youth and Recreation 
Commission in Calendar Year 2015 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Adopt a resolution requesting Council approval of three additional meetings for the 
Children, Youth, and Recreation Commission in calendar year 2015. 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION 
Minimal staff time and resources. 
 
CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 
In January, February and March of 2015, the Children, Youth, and Recreation 
Commission held three special meetings in order to review proposals and prepare 
recommendations to Council regarding the FY 2016 – 17 funding allocations for 
community agencies that provide youth services.  
 
As the Commission may only have ten meetings per year, per Council Resolution No. 
66,861-N.S., Council approval is requested to allow the Commission to continue its 
regular meeting schedule for the remainder of the year.  
 
On June 22, 2015, in order to allow the Commission to continue their regular meetings 
through 2015, the Commission took action to request Council approval of three 
additional meetings in calendar year 2015. M/S: (O’Keefe/Dahl): Aye’s: Dahl; Gebhart; 
O’Keefe; Sinai; Waldstein. No’s: None. Abstain: None. 
 
BACKGROUND 
On December 16, 2014, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 66,861-N.S. that 
established a Commission Meeting Frequency Schedule for 2015. The Resolution 
established that the Children, Youth & Recreation Commission may have a maximum of 
ten meetings per year. Any additional meetings require Council approval.  
  

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
4a.02



Approval of Additional Meetings for Children, Youth & Recreation INFORMATION CALENDAR 
Commission  October 13, 2015 

Page 2 

CITY MANAGER 
The City Manager concurs with the Commission’s request. 
 
CONTACT PERSON 
Christina Erickson, Secretary, Children, Youth & Recreation Commission, 981-6703 
 
 
Attachment:  
1: Resolution 



 

RESOLUTION ##.###–N.S. 
 

APPROVING THREE ADDITIONAL MEETINGS IN CALENDAR YEAR 2015 FOR THE 
CHILDREN, YOUTH AND RECREATION COMMISSION 

 
WHEREAS, on December 16, 2014, Berkeley City Council adopted Resolution No. 
66,861-N.S. that established a Commission Meeting Frequency Schedule for 2015, the 
Children, Youth and Recreation Commission was allocated ten meetings per calendar 
year; and 
 
WHEREAS, any additional meetings require Council approval; and 
 
WHEREAS, on June 22, 2015, in order to allow the Commission to continue their 
regular meetings through 2015, the Children, Youth and Recreation Commission took 
action to request Council approval of three additional meetings in calendar year 2015 
M/S: (O’Keefe/Dahl): Aye’s: Dahl; Gebhart; O’Keefe; Sinai; Waldstein. No’s: None. 
Abstain: None.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that three 
additional meetings are approved in calendar year 2015 for the Children, Youth, and 
Recreation Commission. 



 



 
Jesse Arreguín 
City Councilmember, District 4 

Martin Luther King Jr. Civic Center Building ● 2180 Milvia Street, 5th Floor, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7140 
Fax: (510) 981-7144 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● E-Mail: jarreguin@cityofberkeley.info 

Web: www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncildistrict4 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
October 13, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
 
From:  Councilmember Jesse Arreguín 
 
Subject: Urging the State Legislature and Governor to repeal the Costa-Hawkins 

Rental Housing Act 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Adopt a Resolution urging the California State Legislature and Governor to adopt legislation  
repealing the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act, Civil Code Sections 1954.50-1954.535.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code Sections 1954.50-1954.535),  
adopted in 1995, allows an owner of residential rental property to establish a new rental  
rate for a dwelling or unit for new tenancies. In addition, the California Court of Appeal in its  
decision in Palmer v. City of Los Angeles, determined that inclusionary zoning  
requirements are prohibited under the Costa-Hawkins Act, since the law prohibits  
government entities from establishing new rental rates.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
None 
 
CONTACT PERSON: 
Jesse Arreguín, City Councilmember, District 4  (510) 981-7140 
 
Attachments: 

1. Resolution 
2. East Bay Express editorial “It’s Time to Overturn the State Ban on Rent Control”, 

March 25, 2015 

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
4a.03



 
Attachment 

Not Received 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Attachment 1 to this report has not been received 
from the submitting office. 
 
 

 
 

City Clerk Department 
2180 Milvia Street 
Berkeley, CA 94704 
(510) 981-6900 
 
 
The City of Berkeley, City Council’s Web site: 
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil/ 

Attachment 1 



9/21/2015 It's Time To Overturn the State Ban on Rent Control |  East Bay Express

http://www.eastbayexpress.com/oakland/its-time-to-overturn-the-state-ban-on-rent-control/Content?oid=4229744&mode=print 1/2

MARCH 25, 2015

Email Tweet Print 3 points

OA KLA N D,  BERKELEY ,  A N D EA ST  BA Y  N EWS,  EV EN T S,  REST A URA N T S,  MUSIC,  &  A RT S

SUBSCRIBE  

SEARCH:
Jesse Arreguin / View Profile / Edit Profile / Log OutN E W S  &  O P I N I O N  »  S E V E N  DA Y S

It's Time To Overturn the State Ban
on Rent Control�
The Costa-Hawkins Act is not only contributing to soaring rent prices,
but it's also creating barriers to new housing construction.
By Robert Gammon @RobertGammon

The rent is too damn high in Oakland. Last month, real estate website Trulia

reported that rents in Oakland soared 12.7 percent last year — the second

largest price jump in the nation. The real estate company Zillow pegged

Oakland's median rent in February at a whopping $2,412 a month — which is

nearly triple the national average. And as we noted in a news story earlier this

month, some landlords are now raising rents by as much as 50 percent (see

"How East Bay Tenants Get Displaced," 3/11).

Rents, in short, are officially out of control. And the skyrocketing prices are

making apartments much too expensive for many longtime residents.

Unfortunately, however, the city can't do much about it. Why? A twenty-

year-old state law known as the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act blocks

Oakland and other California cities from adopting sensible rent control rules

that could help keep rent prices from getting even higher.

Costa-Hawkins, which doesn't get nearly enough attention from the news

media, prohibits Oakland from establishing rent control on buildings

constructed after 1983. That means that about one-third of all rental units in

Oakland — 32,000 out of 92,000 — are exempt from the city's rent control

regulations. Landlords of those buildings are thus free to raise rents as much

as they want — which is exactly what they're doing. And that's a big problem

for a city like Oakland, in which approximately 60 percent of residents are

renters.

Legislators representing Oakland, Berkeley, San Francisco, San Jose, Los

Angeles, and other cities with skyrocketing rents should be clamoring to

overturn Costa-Hawkins. But the law — like Prop 13 — has become an

electric third rail in California politics: Nobody wants to touch it, not even

liberals. But that shouldn't be the case, because Costa-Hawkins is helping

make California unaffordable for millions of people, and there's evidence

1kShare

Attachment 2



9/21/2015 It's Time To Overturn the State Ban on Rent Control |  East Bay Express

http://www.eastbayexpress.com/oakland/its-time-to-overturn-the-state-ban-on-rent-control/Content?oid=4229744&mode=print 2/2

« Water Transfers Threaten Fish…

that it's hurting the economy.

Supporters of Costa-Hawkins argue that rent control laws dissuade

developers from building new housing. But since 1995, when Costa-Hawkins

was passed, housing construction in California has trailed the rest of the

nation — by a significant margin. According to a report last week by the

nonpartisan state Legislative Analyst's Office (LAO), the number of new

home permits in California's coastal cities, including Oakland, San Francisco,

and Los Angeles, was about one-third lower than the rest of the nation during

the Aughts.

In cities like Oakland, there's strong evidence that Costa-Hawkins has had the

opposite effect from what its supporters originally intended: Rather than

making it easier to build new market-rate housing, it has helped create

barriers to it. Indeed, many housing activists now work to block the

construction of market-rate units, because they contend that new apartments

prompt rents in the surrounding areas to rise, especially when the housing is

built in traditionally affordable neighborhoods. And in many circumstances,

they're right: Landlords do sometimes raise prices when new apartments,

which often rent at higher prices, come on the market.

This cascading effect has numerous impacts. It not only can price low-

income residents out of the city and worsen gentrification, but it also can

create serious financial hardships for people who have nowhere else to go.

According to the LAO, the poorest 25 percent of households in the state

spend about 67 percent of their income, on average, on housing. That means

large numbers of residents have little to no money to buy food and other

essential items.

Overturning — or at least reforming — Costa-Hawkins could change that. It

would allow cities like Oakland to keep rent prices affordable in existing

buildings when new apartments are built, and thus lift an unnecessary barrier

to housing construction.

So what about the argument by opponents of rent control that housing prices

are soaring because there's not enough housing (the LAO makes that

argument, too)? Well, they're right. The lack of supply has sent housing

prices through the roof, and we do need more housing — at all price levels.

But it could take decades for California to build enough housing to keep

prices under control. According to the LAO, the state should have

constructed millions of new units during the past few decades.

As such, one sensible reform to Costa-Hawkins would be to exempt new

housing units from rent control laws for ten years. That way, developers

could be sure to get healthy returns on their investments, and so would not

be dissuaded from building new housing — while renters in existing buildings

that are ten years or older would be guaranteed to not face ridiculous rent

hikes.

Out-of-control rents are also an immediate problem that can be addressed

quickly. And politics shouldn't get in the way. After all, California has

become much more liberal in the last two decades. Costa-Hawkins was

enacted under the Republican administration of then-Governor Pete Wilson.

Those days are obviously over, and it's time for the state to let cities like

Oakland enact laws that will protect more residents from getting displaced.

Contact the author of this piece, send a letter to the editor, like us on
Facebook, or follow us on Twitter.

The East Bay Hip-Hop Scene Wil… »



Kriss Worthington 
Councilmember, City of Berkeley, District 7 
2180 Milvia Street, 5th Floor, Berkeley, CA 94704 
PHONE 510-981-7170, FAX 510-981-7177, EMAIL 
kworthington@ci.berkeley.ca.us 
                                                                       

CONSENT CALENDAR 
October 13, 2015 

To:   Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
From:   Councilmember Kriss Worthington 
 
Subject:  Endorse the Internet for All Proposal to the Federal Communications  

Commission (FCC) to Secure an Affordable Broadband Lifeline Program 
for All Low-income Households.  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Endorse the Internet for All proposal to the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) 
to secure an affordable Broadband Lifeline Program for all low-income households. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The California Emerging Technology Fund is a non-profit organization seeking to gain 
support for their Internet for All campaign. The goal of the Internet for All campaign is to 
“Establish an affordable High Speed Internet service plan for low-income households 
offered by and through all broadband providers (in the $10/month range) with sufficient 
speeds and a wireless modem for compatibility with school-issued devices.” 
 
According to the Internet for All campaign, broadband access at home is necessary to 
perform daily tasks such as job and school applications, workforce training and 
healthcare coverage. In addition, the campaign stresses that, “The Digital Divide 
persists for disadvantaged communities with large percentages not connected at home-
35% of low –income households (under $20,000 annual income); 30% of Latino 
Families (37% for Spanish-speaking household); and 41% of people with disabilities.”  
 
The Campaign seeks to combat this “Digital Divide” by “dedicating funding to 
community based organizations (CBO’s), schools, and libraries to assist providers with 
in-language, in-culture outreach, digital training, and sign-ups for subscriptions to 
successfully close the Digital Divide.”  
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
No financial implications to the city. 
 
ENVIROMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY: 
No environmental impacts to the city. 
 
CONTACT PERSON  
Councilmember Kriss Worthington  510-981-7170 
Jacqueline Reyes                               323-842-2590 
 
 

 

 

mailto:kworthington@ci.berkeley.ca.us
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
4a.04



 



Kriss Worthington 
Councilmember, City of Berkeley, District 7 

2180 Milvia Street, 5th Floor, Berkeley, CA 94704 

PHONE 510-981-7170     FAX 510-981-7177 

kworthington@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
                      October 13, 2015 

To:   Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council    
From:   Councilmember Kriss Worthington 
  
Subject: Hate Crime Prevention Response Plan  

RECOMMENDATION: 
Create a hate crimes prevention response plan 

BACKGROUND: 
In previous years, the intensity of the controversies surrounding the debate of Israel and 

Palestine and divestiture has led to a significant increase in hate crimes, particularly 

immediately after these debates.  

In an effort to prevent hate crimes out of the current debate in Berkeley, we are 

proposing a hate crime prevention response plan be created and implemented 

expeditiously.  

We encourage full expression from all points of view, on this and any other controversial 

issues. However, we need to send a loud and clear message that any debate must not 

and cannot generate into hate crimes against, Jews, Muslims or anyone in our city.  

It is important and powerful to have intelligent debates but totally unacceptable for the 

debate to descend into violence and hate crimes. We encourage all residents to keep 

an eye out for any indication that anyone would be threatened, intimidated, bullied, or 

attacked because of their identity or opinions. It is urgently important that we support a 

healthy dialogue and prevent hate crimes. 

It is equally important that if you witness a hate crime that you document and report 

them.  We earnestly hope that our entire community can unite in preventing hate crimes 

from occurring, but if they do we must have a strong response to express our revulsion. 

With a conscious determination, the City of Berkeley can prevent this dialogue from 

leading to any hate crimes and negative actions by giving careful and conscious 

attention to hate crimes now and in the future.  We commit that we prevent any hate 

crimes in the City of Berkeley.  

mailto:kworthington@ci.berkeley.ca.us
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
4a.05



ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY: 
Consistent with our Climate Action Plan 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  
Unknown. 
 
CONTACT PERSON: 
Councilmember Kriss Worthington 510-981-7170 



mailto:kworthington@ci.berkeley.ca.us
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
4a.06



 
GLAAD-Spirit Day in Berkeley 

 
WHEREAS, The GLSEN National Student Climate Survey conducted in 2013 showed that “74% of 

LGBT students were verbally harassed because of their sexual orientation and 55.2% 
were verbally harassed because of their gender expression”; and 

 
WHEREAS,  The GLSEN National Student Climate Survey conducted in 2013 also pointed out that 

“55.5% of LGBT students felt unsafe at school because of their sexual orientation and 
61.6% of LGBT students who reported bullying said school staff did nothing”; and 

 
WHEREAS,  The Gay & Lesbian Alliance Against Defamation (GLAAD) is a non-profit 

organization that rewrites the script for LGBT acceptance; and 
 
WHEREAS,  GLAAD created in 2010 the GLAAD-Spirit Day Campaign to Go Purple to stand 

against bullying and show support for LGBT youth; and 
 
WHEREAS,  Berkeley is a supportive environment for LGBT and is against bullying or any gender 

discrimination; now 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Berkeley, to support the LGBT youth and stand 
against bullying, do hereby invite all Berkeleyans to join with GLAAD by speaking up, acting up 
creatively and freely, by wearing purple during National Bullying Prevention Month, and does hereby 
proclaim October 15, 2015 as : 
 

October 15, 2015 as GLAAD-Spirit Day in Berkeley 
 
 



Kriss Worthington 
Councilmember, City of Berkeley, District 7 
2180 Milvia Street, 5th Floor, Berkeley, CA 94704 
PHONE 510-981-7170, FAX 510-981-7177, EMAIL 
kworthington@ci.berkeley.ca.us 
                                                               CONSENT CALENDAR 

October 13, 2015 
To:   Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
From:   Councilmember Kriss Worthington 
 
Subject:  City Manager Referral: Constitutional questions raised about DBA 

Ambassadors taking down fliers that appear to comply with Berkeley 
Municipal Code  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
City Manager referral: Constitutional questions raised about Downtown Berkeley 
Association (DBA) Ambassadors taking down fliers that appear to comply with Berkeley 
Municipal Code. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Residents have asked the City of Berkeley for a copy of the rules for putting up fliers. 
They reviewed the rules and determined that their posters were allowed on city utility 
poles. Therefore when they put up fliers on Berkeley city poles, they believed that they 
were correctly following the rules given by the city. Nonetheless their fliers were 
removed by Downtown Berkeley Association (DBA) Ambassadors. 
 
In March and in August of 2015, photos were taken of DBA Ambassadors removing 
fliers from utility poles that appear to comply with Berkeley Municipal Code. 
 
Residents are thereby asking if the DBA Ambassadors are violating the Berkeley 
Municipal Code and the constitutionally guaranteed right of free speech? 
 
According to Chapter 20.08 of the Berkeley Municipal Code: 
“No sign, poster, placard, card, stickers, banner, or other device calculated to attract 
attention of the public shall be posted, printed, stamped, stuck or otherwise affixed to or 
placed upon any public sidewalk, crosswalk, median strip, curb, lamppost, hydrant, tree, 
utility pole, any fixture of the traffic control, fire alarm or police alarm system of the city, 
except : … Temporary signs concerning noncommercial events in the form of posters, 
placards, cards, stickers, or flyers that do not cause a hazard to pedestrian or vehicle 
traffic are permitted on City owned utility poles and lampposts. Temporary signs may 
only be attached to public property in a manner consistent with standards promulgated 
by the Department of Public Works.” (http://codepublishing.com/ca/berkeley/) 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
Minimal 
 
ENVIROMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY: 
Consistent with Berkeley’s Environmental Sustainability Goals and no negative impact. 
 

 

mailto:kworthington@ci.berkeley.ca.us
http://codepublishing.com/ca/berkeley/
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
4a.07



CONTACT PERSON  
Councilmember Kriss Worthington  510-981-7170 



Kriss Worthington 
Councilmember, City of Berkeley, District 7 
2180 Milvia Street, 5th Floor, Berkeley, CA 94704 
PHONE 510-981-7170, FAX 510-981-7177, EMAIL 
kworthington@ci.berkeley.ca.us 
                                                                       

CONSENT CALENDAR 
October 13, 2015 

To:   Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
From:   Councilmember Kriss Worthington 

Councilmember Max Anderson 
 
Subject:  City Manager Referral: Support for Veteran’s Day Event   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Refer to the City Manager to support Veteran’s Day event by re-establishing the link to 
the Vietnam Veterans Electronic Memorial and cleaning the Veterans Memorial Building 
steps and plaques.  
 
BACKGROUND 
The Berkeley Historical Society, Options Recovery Services, the Berkeley Disabled 
 American Veterans and Country Joe McDonald are cooperating on a Veteran’s Day 
event to be held on Wednesday November 11, 2015 at the Veterans Memorial Building, 
The event will not only commemorate those Berkeley residents who have served and 
died in the Armed Forces, but seek to draw attention to those veterans still living who 
may need our community’s support.  
 
The event will include a program in the auditorium and a special exhibit at the Berkeley 
Historical Society. Details are still being worked out, but may include a ceremony on the 
front steps and a reception with light refreshments. All will be welcome and the media 
will be invited.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
Minimal.  
 
ENVIROMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY: 
Consistent with Berkeley’s Sustainability Goals.  
 
CONTACT PERSON  
Councilmember Kriss Worthington  510-981-7170 
 

 
  
 

 

mailto:kworthington@ci.berkeley.ca.us
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
4a.08



 



Kriss Worthington 
Councilmember, City of Berkeley, District 7 
2180 Milvia Street, 5th Floor, Berkeley, CA 94704 
PHONE 510-981-7170, FAX 510-981-7177, EMAIL 
kworthington@ci.berkeley.ca.us 
                                                                       

CONSENT CALENDAR 
October 13, 2015 

To:    Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
From:    Councilmember Kriss Worthington 
   Councilmember Max Anderson 

Councilmember Darryl Moore 
 
Subject:    Supporting the Exoneration of Port Chicago Sailors 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Adopt a Resolution supporting the exoneration of Port Chicago sailors. 
 
BACKGROUND 
On July 17, 1944, the deadliest home front disaster of World War II took at the California 
based Port Chicago Naval Magazine, when a major munitions transshipment facility exploded 
killing 320 men (of whom 202 were African American) and wounding 390 (of whom 233 were 
African American). All of the men loading ammunition at Port Chicago were black and all of 
the officers were white. 
 
The African American enlisted men had no formal training in safe methods of ammunition 
handling. Work methods introduced by the officers included competition between work gangs 
in loading ammunition and led to rushing and rough handling and increased the dangers of 
the work. A court of inquiry was unable to determine the specific cause of the explosion, 
although it listed rough handling as a possible cause.  
 
258 ammunition handlers engaged in a peaceful work stoppage rather return to work under 
the same officers and the same unsafe working conditions. 50 of these men were charged 
with mutiny, found guilty and eventually sent to prison, although none engaged in violence. 
 
NAACP attorney Thurgood Marshall, speaking in defense of the sailors, argued that the 
mutiny charge and conviction were racially motivated and not supported by facts. In 1945 the 
Navy began a process of desegregation of all of its facilities, leading the way to the general 
desegregation of the U.S. In 1946, the convicted sailors were released from prison under a 
general amnesty but the mutiny convictions remain on their records.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
None. 
 
ENVIROMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY: 
Consistent with Berkeley’s Climate Action Plan. 
 

 

 

mailto:kworthington@ci.berkeley.ca.us
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
4a.09



CONTACT PERSON  
Councilmember Kriss Worthington  510-981-7170 
 
Attachment:  
1. Resolution Supporting Exoneration of Port Chicago Sailors



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

SUPPORTING EXONERATION OF PORT CHICAGO SAILORS 
 

WHEREAS, On July 17, 1944, the deadliest home front disaster of World War II took place 
when a huge explosion occurred at the Port Chicago Naval Magazine,  a major munitions 
transshipment facility in California, killing 320 men (of whom 202 were African American) and 
 wounding 390 (of whom 233 were African American); and 
 
WHEREAS, all of the men loading ammunition at Port Chicago were black and all of the 
officers were white; and 
 
WHEREAS, the African American enlisted men were subject to systematic racial 
discrimination and segregation; and 
 
WHEREAS, there was no formal training in safe methods of ammunition handling given to 
enlisted men or the officers at the base; and 
 
WHEREAS, work methods introduced by the officers included competition between work 
gangs in loading ammunition; and 
 
WHEREAS, such competition led to rushing and rough handling and increased the dangers 
of the work; and 
 
WHEREAS, a court of inquiry was unable to determine the specific cause of the explosion, 
although it listed rough handling as a possible cause; and 
 
WHEREAS, 258 ammunition handlers engaged in a peaceful work stoppage rather return to 
work under the same officers and the same unsafe working conditions; and 
 
WHEREAS, 50 of these men were charged with mutiny, although none had engaged in acts 
of violence and they obeyed all orders except to load ammunition; and 
 
WHEREAS, all 50 were found guilty and sentenced to prison; and 
 
WHEREAS, NAACP attorney Thurgood Marshall, speaking in defense of the sailors, argued 
that the mutiny charge and conviction were racially motivated and not supported by the facts; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the sailors’ disobedience shined a light on racial injustice in the Navy,  in 1945 
the Navy began a process of desegregation of all of its facilities, leading the way to the 
general desegregation of the U.S. military ordered in 1948 by President Harry Truman; and 
 
WHEREAS, in 1946, the convicted sailors were released from prison under a general 
amnesty but the mutiny convictions remain on their records, and 
 
WHEREAS, a review of the trial record and related documents reveals that the accused 
sailors had no intent to commit mutiny and did not conspire to do so. 
 



NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the Council 
endorses the call for restorative justice, for exoneration of the convicted Port Chicago sailors, 
and for correction of their military records. 

 



 
Community Environmental Advisory Commission 

2118 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7460 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7470 

E-Mail: toxics@CityofBerkeley.info  ● Website: 

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Community_Environmental_Advisory_Commission/

ACTION CALENDAR 
October 13, 2015 
 

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

From: Community Environmental Advisory Commission (CEAC) 

Submitted by: Luis Amezcua, Chair, Community Environmental Advisory Commission 

Subject: Berkeley Lead Poison Prevention and Control 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

Adopt a Resolution directing the City Manager to (1) implement an enforcement 
program per SB 460 of 2002 for lead paint hazards; (2) annually remind pediatricians 
and other medical providers to regularly test children between the ages of one and six 
for blood lead levels, and to report all blood lead levels above 5 microgram per deciliter, 
or if there is an increase of 1 microgram per deciliter to City Public Health for further 
investigation1; and (3) evaluate the program after a year of implementation and present 
the findings to the Community Environmental Advisory Commission (CEAC). 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff time to implement and evaluate program and costs related to enforcement. 
Penalties may offset some costs. 
 
CEAC recommends that the City leave enforcement for abating lead paint hazards open 
to any City department, such as Building and Safety, Housing, Public Health, Code 
Enforcement, etc., in order to avoid the hiring of an additional staff member that may 
increase financial impacts. Enforcement could include stop work or cease and desist 
orders, clean up orders, or penalties. Any city agency is capable of pursuing these 
remedies.  
 
To reduce the fiscal impact of formal enforcement on city staff, the City could identify 
high risk violations that would carry a mandatory citation. Examples of high risk 
violations are those which may impact children, the elderly or pregnant women. If the 
City departments listed above each contributed 0.25 – 0.5 FTE, the fiscal impact would 
be minimal. 
 
With respect to funding for this enforcement program, CEAC has identified the following 
areas and actions that local agencies are using to fund their lead enforcement program: 

                                                
1 A blood lead benchmark for assessing risks from childhood lead exposure. 

JAMES C. CARLISLE et al. Journal of Environmental Science and Health Part A (2009) 44, 1200–1208. 

mailto:toxics@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/community_environmental_advisory_commission/
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
4a.11a



Berkeley Lead Poison Prevention and Control  ACTION CALENDAR 
  October 13, 2015  
 

Page 2 

 

• The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) provides grants 
for lead outreach and lead hazard remediation. 

• The California Department of Public Health (DHS) provides grants to local 
agencies to implement SB 460 and perform lead related enforcement, including 
covering the cost of training inspectors to become DHS-certified. 

• Local agencies have used Community Development Block (CDBG) grants to fund 
their lead enforcement program. 

• The lead enforcement ordinance enacted by the City of San Diego implements a 
re-inspection fee, allowing the enforcer to assess a fee when re-inspecting a 
building to determine compliance; moreover, fees can be included in building 
permits and demolition/removal permits for the purpose of cost recovery. 

• The City Council can request additional funding from Alameda County that will 
specifically go for enforcement or allocate some of the funds that it already 
receives from the $10 per pre-1978 dwelling fee. 

 
BACKGROUND 
Lead is a neurotoxin and carcinogen that is harmful to everyone, especially infants, 
preschool children, and pregnant women. Even small amounts of lead can impact a 
child’s learning ability, physical growth, and cause other defects along these lines. Aside 
from the tragic damage to children who are exposed to lead, the societal costs of lead 
poisoning are far from negligible. 
 

Lead hazards are considered one of the highest environmental impacts to human health 
and impacts children and pregnant women to the greatest degree. In 1978, lead was 
banned in house paint in California, leaving 85%2 of Berkeley’s current housing stock, 
which was built pre-1970, very likely to have lead. Lead paint remains in many older 
buildings and improper removal creates a lead hazard as defined by California Health 
and Safety Code §17920. Lead hazards are defined as a potential substandard building 
condition in California Department of Housing and Community Development Codes 
(California Health & Safety Code §17920.10). However, this designation of substandard 
building condition should not be used as a reason to evict residents from their housing. 
 
State and Federal codes provide proper and safe procedures to remove paint and 
reduce exposure; these procedures help in reducing the release of lead paint dust or 
chips into living space and soils where children are at a high risk of being exposed to 
lead. However, there is currently no enforcement in the City of Berkeley to ensure 
proper procedures are taken by workers, whether the workers even know about the 
procedures, or if the procedures are completely ignored, nor is there any type of 
recourse for those who report it. 

                                                
2 Percentage of Berkeley’s housing stock built before 1970. 

City of Berkeley, 2009-2014 Housing Element (2010), 30 



Berkeley Lead Poison Prevention and Control  ACTION CALENDAR 
  October 13, 2015  
 

Page 3 

 
In 2003, Senate Bill (SB) 460 took effect in California, amending State Housing Laws to 
make an entire home or a portion of a home substandard if it had a lead hazard. SB 460 
added Section 17920.10 to the Health and Safety Code to define a lead hazard as 
deteriorating lead paint, lead dust and lead in soils. SB 460 thus allows a local 
jurisdiction to use Housing Code enforcement mechanisms against violations of the 
housing law where a lead hazard is identified. Accordingly, a local jurisdiction can use 
any enforcement department to enforce the law. 
 
California HSC 105255(c) authorizes the local enforcement agency to issue a cease 
and desist order if a lead hazard is determined to exist. Failure to comply with such an 
order is punishable with a fine not to exceed $1,000. The local enforcement agency may 
also order the property owner to abate the lead hazard. Failure to comply is punishable 
with a fine not to exceed $1,000. Subsequent violations are a misdemeanor punishable 
by $5,000 fine or imprisonment for not more than 6 months. 
 
In 2004, the City accepted a grant from the California Department of Health Services, 
Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention Branch for funds to enforce lead hazard reduction 
compliance through June 30, 20063. In 2012, the City of Berkeley again committed to 
reducing lead hazards, accepting at grant to prevent and address lead hazards from 
unsafe renovations in Berkeley4. The City of Berkeley has recognized how important 
lead hazard abatement is and previously applied for and received a grant for lead 
hazard enforcement.   
 
CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 
Although the City is a member of a Lead Abatement District (LAD), the district has no 
enforcement tools, which it correctly assumes are within the authority of its member 
agencies.  To explain, in 1991 the Cities of Berkeley, Alameda, and Oakland entered 
into an agreement to create an LAD, later joined by Emeryville in 1992.  
 
Because the LAD solely provides education and outreach to its member cities and the 
public, and has no enforcement mechanisms for implementing SB 460, enforcement 
should come from local agencies. 
 
Since LAD’s creation, the $10 per pre-1978 dwelling fee has not been increased despite 
the Consumer Price Index rising by 74.6%. As a consequence, services provided by 
LAD have suffered dramatically, especially for lead abatement. LAD services are now 
mostly educational and are provided by Alameda County Healthy Homes Department 
(ACHHD). Currently, the ACHHD offers the City’s Public Health Division funding of 

                                                
3 Under consent calendar 9: http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/citycouncil/2004citycouncil/packet/022404/02-

24draft.pdf  
4http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/uploadedFiles/Clerk/City_Council/2012/09Sep/Documents/2012-09-

11%20Item%2013%20Grant%20Agreements%20Funding%20Alameda.pdf  

http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/citycouncil/2004citycouncil/packet/022404/02-24draft.pdf
http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/citycouncil/2004citycouncil/packet/022404/02-24draft.pdf
http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/uploadedFiles/Clerk/City_Council/2012/09Sep/Documents/2012-09-11%20Item%2013%20Grant%20Agreements%20Funding%20Alameda.pdf
http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/uploadedFiles/Clerk/City_Council/2012/09Sep/Documents/2012-09-11%20Item%2013%20Grant%20Agreements%20Funding%20Alameda.pdf


Berkeley Lead Poison Prevention and Control  ACTION CALENDAR 
  October 13, 2015  
 

Page 4 

around $10,000 to assist the City’s Public Health division in casework management for 
high blood lead levels in children. 
 
The member cities of the LAD provide outreach and education only when they receive 
lead hazard complaints. The City of Berkeley generally does not stop contractors from 
creating a lead hazard. When a lead hazard is reported as a complaint, Public Health 
staff offer leaflets for certification and safe lead removal. No cease and desist orders are 
issued, allowing contractors and property owners to continue with violations. Rarely has 
any enforcement action been taken against a lead hazard using lead hazard laws. In the 
absence of a lead enforcement program, City inspectors who witness a lead hazard on 
the job are not required to abate the violation or issue any enforcement. 
 
For further details about what the LAD provides the City, please see the report below 
that ACHHD provided to the Community Environmental Advisory Commission (CEAC) 
in 2013: 
 
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Planning_and_Development/Level_3_-
_Commissions/Commission_for_Community_Environmental_Advisory/2014%2002%20
13_CEAC_AGN_Item%20VIII.c.pdf 
 
The City of Berkeley Permit Service Center also stamps all building permits that have 
plans with a stamp that states: 
 
Lead Hazard Warning 
Due to the possible presence of lead-based paint, lead-safe work practices are required 
by law for all repairs that disturb paint in pre-1979 buildings. Failure to do so could 
create lead hazards that violate California Health and Safety Code, Sections 17920.10 
and 105256 with potential fines for violations up to $5,000 (Section [d] amended) or 
imprisonment for not more than 6 months in the county jail or both. For more 
information, visit www.aclppp.org  
 
It is crucial for the City to establish a local enforcement program that will reduce and 
ultimately prevent lead poisoning and environmental contamination, especially when 
85% of Berkeley’s housing stock was built before 1970.  
 
CEAC proposes that painters and other workers should receive certification under the 
Environmental Protection Agency’s (EPA) Lead-based Paint Renovation, Repair, and 
Painting (RRP) Rule. Without RRP certification, workers can inadvertently create lead 
hazards and expose humans and the environment to adverse health effects. 
Enforcement will ensure that more workers are certified, leading to safer lead 
abatement inside and outside of residences. 
 
CEAC proposes prevention as the key in tackling lead poisoning. Lead poisoning only 
comes to light once children are tested for blood lead levels. However, it is not clear 

http://h
http://h
http://h
http://www.aclppp.org/


Berkeley Lead Poison Prevention and Control  ACTION CALENDAR 
  October 13, 2015  
 

Page 5 

whether blood lead testing is routinely done before children enter first grade. By this 
age, severe nerve damage might have already and irreversibly occurred.  
 
In addition to creating a local enforcement program with requirements that City 
inspectors respond to lead hazards observed during work, CEAC also proposes the City 
urge local hospitals and pediatricians to conduct frequent blood lead testing in order to 
catch the early stages of childhood lead poisoning. It is important that local pediatricians 
and hospitals report levels of blood lead much lower than the current benchmark of 10 
micrograms per deciliter to local agencies for additional investigation. The Center for 
Disease Control’s (CDC) blood lead level of concern is 5 micrograms per deciliter.  
 
On February 12, 2015 the CEAC adopted the following resolution: to direct the City 
Manager to (1) implement an enforcement program per SB 460 for lead paint hazards; 
(2) annually remind pediatricians and other medical providers to regularly test children 
between the ages of one and six for blood lead levels. All blood lead levels above 1 
microgram per deciliter should be reported to the City Public Health for further 
investigation; and (3) direct the City Manager to evaluate the program after a year of 
implementation and present the findings to the Community Environmental Advisory 
Commission (CEAC). 
 
Motion/Seconded/Carried: (Goldhaber/Varnhagen). Ayes: Amezcua, Delfin-Polk, 
Gallardo, Goldhaber, Gould, Magofña, Torkelson, Varnhagen, Lim. Noes: None. 
Absent: None. Abstain: None. 
 
CEAC forwarded the lead proposal to the Community Health Commission (CHC) and 
Housing Advisory Commission (HAC) for feedback and possible action. Both 
Commissions were supportive of the measure, while some were unaware that 
enforcement was not being done, and requested that CEAC look into possible funding 
sources. 
 
On February 26, 2015, the CHC adopted the following motion: 
 
To substantively support the report submitted by CEAC regarding the Lead Prevention 
and Control Program with the following caveat: that there must be funding to support 
this work and that it come from the tax that is levied on Berkeley residents. This is 
approximately $450,000, which would be sufficient to support a fully functional 
prevention and abatement program which includes enforcement.  
M/S/C (Speich/Shaw). Ayes: Chen, Franklin, Namkung, Nathan, Rosales, Shaw, 
Soichet, Speich, Stein. A. Wong, and M. Wong. Noes: None. Abstain: Thornton. Absent 
Lee. Excused: Kwanele. 
 
On March 11, 2015, HAC approved the CEAC recommendations with the following 
votes: M/S/C (Wolfe/Soto-Vigil). Ayes: Darrow, Magofna, Mahrer, Soto-Vigil, and Wolfe. 
Noes: None. Abstain: Abramson, Drake, Gordon, and Skjerping. 



Berkeley Lead Poison Prevention and Control  ACTION CALENDAR 
  October 13, 2015  
 

Page 6 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY 
Preventing lead paint environmental contamination, through education and 
enforcement, improves living conditions of Berkeley residents and prevents costly 
cleanups and lifelong medical attention for youth.  
 
RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The City of Berkeley has been remiss in not providing the enforcement elements of SB 
460 even when the state identified that enforcement was an essential tool to ensure 
compliance and avoid costly lead paint poisoning. 
 
There are multiple cities that have implemented local lead paint enforcement laws, such 
as San Diego, Los Angeles, and San Francisco. Given that 85% of Berkeley’s housing 
stock is pre-1970, it is imperative for the City to enact a local enforcement program that 
will reduce and ultimately prevent childhood lead poisoning and environmental 
contamination. 
 
The 10 micrograms per deciliter benchmark for adverse effects of lead on children 
under 6 is not based on scientific evidence nor is it protective. It is recommended that 
the City should use 5 microgram per deciliter as a benchmark. 
 
ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED 
CEAC has considered not recommending the initiative, taking no position, or 
recommending a pilot program rather than a full program. 
 
CITY MANAGER 
See City Manager Companion report. 
 
CONTACT PERSON 
Luis Amezcua, Chair     661-236-4005 
Nabil Al-Hadithy, Commission Secretary   510-981-7400 
 
Attachments: 

1. Resolution 
2. California Department of Public Health Informational Sheet 
3. San Francisco Lead Ordinance 



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S. 
 

BERKELEY LEAD POISON PREVENTION AND CONTROL 

WHEREAS, 85% of Berkeley’s housing stock is pre-1970, making it very likely to 
contain lead. Lead exposure is harmful for all Berkeley residents, especially children, 
elders, and pregnant women; and 
 
WHEREAS, blood lead at levels much lower than 10 micrograms per deciliter are 
shown to harm neurological development in young children. There is no medical 
treatment that can reverse or cure the effects of lead poisoning; and 
 
WHEREAS, lead poisoning and environmental contamination by lead is preventable; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, local enforcement agencies, the former California Department of Health 
Services, and the Bureau of State Audits noted that the prevention of childhood lead 
poisoning through the reduction of lead hazards has been hampered by lack of effective 
enforcement laws; and 
 
WHEREAS, lead paint disturbance and removal is subject to only minimal regulation, 
increasing the risk of Berkeley children and pets to be poisoned with lead. Painters and 
other workers working without certification in Lead Renovation, Repair, and Painting 
(RRP) Rule will create lead hazards and expose humans and the environment to 
adverse effects from lead exposure. These persons can in turn transfer lead dust from 
their work clothes to their children and their home environment; and 
 
WHEREAS, inadequate local laws and enforcement against unsafe lead paint practices 
may lead to rainwater and soil contamination. Once environmental contamination has 
occurred, the efforts and costs for cleaning up such widespread damage are prohibitive. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Council of the City of Berkeley directs 
the City Manager to implement an enforcement program per SB 460 of 2002 for lead 
paint hazards. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Council of the City of Berkeley directs the City 
Manager to annually remind pediatricians and other medical providers to regularly test 
children between the ages of one and six for blood lead levels. All blood lead levels 
above 5 microgram per deciliter, and if there is an increase of 1 microgram per deciliter, 
should be reported to City Public Health for further investigation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Council of the City of Berkeley directs the City 
Manager to evaluate the program after a year of implementation and present the 
findings to the Community Environmental Advisory Commission. 
 



ARNOLD SCHWARZENEGGER 
Governor

State of California—Health and Human Services Agency 

Department of Health Services 
Common Questions about  

Local Enforcement Implementation 
Senate Bill 460 

Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention Branch, 
Lead-Hazard Reduction Section (November 2002) 

This document is provided for informational and educational purposes only and does not constitute 
legal advice or opinion.  DHS strongly recommends that local agencies consult their legal counsel 

(city or district attorneys or county counsel) for a legal interpretation of this bill  
as it applies to their jurisdiction and agency.   

SANDRA SHEWRY 
Director 

 

Introduction 

This document describes some portions of Senate Bill 
460, which takes effect on January 1, 2003.  This bill 
creates several mechanisms for local enforcement 
agencies to take a variety of actions to investigate, 
inspect, and order lead hazards abated or otherwise 
corrected.  Many local enforcement agencies have 
asked for information about the practical aspects of 
implementing the laws in this bill.   

This document provides general information in response 
to specific questions that the Childhood Lead Poisoning 
Prevention Branch (CLPPB) at the Department of Health 
Services (DHS) has received.  While this document 
addresses some general issues related to this bill, it 
does not constitute legal advice or opinion.  For a legal 
interpretation of this bill and its effect on local agencies, 
please consult your city attorney, district attorney, or 
county counsel as appropriate.  

CLPPB recommends that you review the laws in SB 460 
and the informational sheet entitled “Summary of 
California’s Lead Hazard Reduction Enforcement:  
Senate Bill 460” before reading this document. 

Common Questions 

1. Why did the legislature pass this bill? 

Local enforcement agencies, DHS, and the Bureau of 
State Audits noted that the prevention of childhood lead 
poisoning through the reduction of lead hazards has 
been hampered by lack of effective enforcement laws.  
SB 460 fills in gaps in existing laws so that each 
jurisdiction in California can take enforcement actions, 
when necessary, to compel property owners to abate or 
otherwise correct lead hazards.   

2. The laws in this bill are referred to as “state 
mandated.”  What is the effect of that on local 
agencies? 

The Legislative Counsel of California defines a state 
mandate as a “State legislative enactment or 
administrative regulation that mandates a new program 
or higher level of service on the part of a local  

 

government, the costs of which are required by the  
California Constitution to be reimbursed.”  However, this 
bill specifically states that no reimbursement is required 
by the state.  (Stats. 2002, C. 931, § 12, eff. January 1, 
2003)  Your agency’s legal representative can describe 
the implication of the state mandate on your agency. 

3. How can my jurisdiction fund these new 
activities?  Will we need additional staff to become 
DHS-certified to conduct inspections? 

The Governor’s budget for 2002-2003 includes $2.5 
million in funding allocated for enforcement activities at 
the local level.  DHS will oversee the disbursement of 
these monies.  The activities described in this document 
(and proscribed by the bill’s laws) can be paid for using 
these funds.   Local jurisdictions can apply for funding to 
cover the course and materials cost of training 
inspectors to become DHS-certified. 

Whether or not your jurisdiction will need additional 
DHS-certified personnel to perform inspections will 
depend on your legal representative’s interpretation of 
this bill and your jurisdiction’s configuration for 
conducting housing and building inspections. 

4. Does every tip or complaint that comes to 
my agency about a potential lead hazard have to be 
investigated? 
As with other tips and complaints about potential 
violations of health and housing laws in your agency’s 
jurisdiction, how your agency prioritizes and responds to 
tips and complaints about lead hazards is something that 
your agency’s management must determine.   

When investigating a tip or complaint about a lead 
hazard, keep in mind that SB 460 contains two 
definitions for “lead hazard.”  In section 1.5 of SB 460 
[which amends State Housing Law (Health & Safety § 
17920.10)], a “lead hazard” is defined as follows: 
“(a) Any building or portion thereof including any dwelling unit, 
guestroom, or suite of rooms, or portion thereof, or the premises on 
which it is located, is deemed to be in violation of 
 

Attachment 2



 

  

 
 
 
this part as to any portion that contains lead hazards.  For  purposes 
of this part, "lead hazards" means deteriorated lead-based paint, lead- 
contaminated dust, lead-contaminated soil, or disturbing lead-based 
paint without containment, if one or more of these hazards are present 
in one or more locations in amounts that are equal to or exceed the 
amounts of lead established for these terms in Chapter 8 
(commencing with Section 35001) of Division 1 of Title 17 of the 
California Code of Regulations or by this section and that are likely 
to endanger the health of the public or the occupants thereof as a 
result of their proximity to the public or the occupants thereof. 
   (b) In the absence of new regulations adopted by the State 
Department of Health Services in accordance with the rulemaking 
provisions of the Administrative Procedure Act (Chapter 3.5 
(commencing with Section 11340) of Part 1 of Division 3 of Title 2 
of the Government Code) further interpreting or clarifying the terms 
"deteriorated lead-based paint," "lead-based paint," "lead-
contaminated dust," "containment," or "lead-contaminated soil," 
regulations in Chapter 8 (commencing with Section 35001) of 
Division 1 of Title 17 of the California Code of Regulations adopted 
by the 
State Department of Health Services pursuant to Sections 105250 and 
124150 shall interpret or clarify these terms.  If the State Department 
of Health Services adopts new regulations defining these terms, the 
new regulations shall supersede the prior regulations for the purposes 
of this part. 
   (c) In the absence of new regulations adopted by the State 
Department of Health Services in accordance with the rulemaking 
provisions of the Administrative Procedure Act defining the term 
"disturbing lead-based paint without containment" or modifying the 
term "deteriorated lead-based paint," for purposes of this part 
"disturbing lead-based paint without containment" and "deteriorated 
lead-based paint" shall be considered lead hazards as described in 
subdivision (a) only if the aggregate affected area is equal to or in 
excess of one of the following: 
   (1) Two square feet in any one interior room or space. 
   (2) Twenty square feet on exterior surfaces. 
   (3) Ten percent of the surface area on the interior or exterior 
type of component with a small surface area.  Examples include 
window sills, baseboards, and trim. 
   (d) Notwithstanding subdivision (c), "disturbing lead-based paint 
without containment" and "deteriorated lead-based paint" shall be 
considered lead hazards, for purposes of this part, if it is determined 
that an area smaller than those specified in subdivision (c) is 
associated with a person with a blood lead level equal to or greater 
than 10 micrograms per deciliter. 
 
In sections 8 and 9 of SB 460 (which adds Health & 
Safety §§ 105255 - 105256), “lead hazard” means 
deteriorated lead-based paint, lead contaminated dust, 
lead contaminated soil, disturbing lead-based paint or 
presumed lead-based paint without containment, or any 
other nuisance which may result in persistent and 
quantifiable lead exposure.  (Health & Safety Code § 
105251, which incorporates the current Title 17 definition 
of “lead hazard.”) 

CLPPB has prepared a model protocol that jurisdictions 
may find useful in structuring their complaint 
investigations.  (See “Model Complaint Investigation 
Field Protocol,” CLPPB, November 2002) 

 

 

 

5. If we want to investigate a tip or complaint 
about a potential lead hazard, does the person 
performing the inspection need to be DHS-certified? 

Persons who are conducting “lead hazard evaluations” 
must be DHS-certified.  A “lead hazard evaluation” is 
defined in Title 17 regulations as “the on-site 
investigation, for compensation, of lead-based paint or 
lead hazards, such as a lead inspection, risk 
assessment, and clearance inspection, for public and 
residential buildings, but does not include activities 
intended to determine adequacy of containment . . .”  (17 
CCR § 35038). 

If the lead hazard complaint is about the adequacy of 
containment for disturbing presumed lead-based paint 
without containment, certification is not required. 

However, to confirm the presence of lead-based paint, or 
lead-contaminated dust or soil, the person sampling 
must be DHS-certified.  The “Model Complaint 
Investigation Field Protocol” provides related guidance. 

6. If a lead hazard is identified, must abatement 
be ordered? 

This will depend on the circumstances and the specific 
law you are using as authority to order the abatement.  If 
you are using State Housing Law (Health & Safety Code 
§ 17920.10), the lead hazard must be “likely to endanger 
the health of the public or occupants thereof as a result 
of their proximity to the public or the occupants thereof.”  
As with any potential code or health violation, the 
circumstances surrounding the lead hazard will influence 
your determination regarding whether or not it is 
appropriate to order abatement.  If children will be 
exposed to the lead hazard, it should be abated to 
prevent a child from developing an elevated blood lead 
level.   

7. If abatement (or cease and desist) is ordered, 
what are the next steps? 

If you have ordered abatement or other corrective action 
of a lead hazard as defined in State Housing Law, your 
jurisdiction’s current procedures for enforcing these 
kinds of orders may be followed.  However, only your 
legal representative can affirm this.   

If you have ordered abatement or other corrective 
actions under Health & Safety Code §§ 105255 or 
105256, look to your existing framework for enforcing 
these kinds of laws.  Again, your jurisdiction’s legal 
representative can give you guidance.  If you don’t have 
enforcement mechanisms in place, DHS can work with 
your jurisdiction to provide technical expertise in 
developing the appropriate forms and procedures.

 
Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention Branch, 850 Marina Bay Parkway, Building P, Third Floor, Richmond, CA  94804-6403 

510-620-5600 
Internet Address:  http://www.dhs.ca.gov/childlead/ 



FILE NO. _____________________ ORDINANCE NO. _____________________

BUILDING INSPECTION COMMISSION
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS Page 1

8/10/99
c:\docs\less-often used\caas web design\nclsh\august 99 docs\san francisco ordinance.doc

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

[Lead-Based Paint Practices]

AMENDING PART II, CHAPTER I OF THE SAN FRANCISCO MUNICIPAL CODE (BUILDING
CODE) BY AMENDING CHAPTER 36 TO CLARIFY ENFORCEMENT AUTHORITY AND THE
RESPONSIBILITIES OF OWNERS AND CONTRACTORS CONCERNING WORK THAT
DISTURBS LEAD PAINT ON BUILDING EXTERIORS AND MAKING MISCELLANEOUS
CLARIFICATIONS AND CORRECTIONS BY REPEALING SECTIONS 3601 AND 3602 IN
THEIR ENTIRETY; BY REPEALING SUBSECTIONS 3603.10, 3603.14, 3603.15, 3603.16,
3603.17, 3603.18, 3606.2.6, 3606.10, AND 3606.11; BY AMENDING SECTION 3608; BY
AMENDING SUBSECTIONS 3604.1, 3605.1, 3606.1, 3606.2, 3606.2.2, 3606.2.7, 3606.4,
3606.5, 3606.6, 3606.6.1, 3606.6.2, 3606.7, 3606.8, 3606.9, 3607.1, 3607.2, 3607.3, 3607.4,
3609.1.1, 3609.1.2, 3609.1.4, 3609.1.5, 3609.2.1; BY RENUMBERING SUBSECTIONS
3603.11, 3603.12, 3603.13 TO 3603.10, 3603.11, 3603.12; BY RENUMBERING
SUBSECTIONS 3603.19, 3603.20, 3603.21, 3603.22, 3603.23, TO 3603.14, 3603.15, 3603.16,
3603.17, 3603.18; RENUMBERING SUBSECTIONS 3606.2.7, 3606.2.8, 3606.2.9 TO 3606.2.6,
3606.2.7, 3606.2.8; AND BY ADDING SUBSECTIONS 3603.13, 3607.3.6 3608.1

Note: In Section 1, additions are underlined; deletions are
in ((double parentheses)).  Sections 2 and 3 are uncodified.

Be it ordained by the People of the City and County of San Francisco:
Section 1. Chapter 36 of the San Francisco Building Code is hereby amended by

amending Chapter 36 to read as follows:
CHAPTER 36

WORK PRACTICES FOR EXTERIOR LEAD-BASED PAINT
((SECTION 3601.  FINDINGS.

The Board of Supervisors finds that:

3601.1 Lead poisoning is preventable.  Childhood lead poisoning is caused by
children ingesting lead from their environment.  From 1991 through 1996, 459 children under the
age of six received services from the Department of Public Health (DPH) in response to
diagnosed lead poisoning. With the elimination of leaded gasoline, the major source of lead in
the environment in San Francisco comes from deteriorated (i.e., peeling, chipping) and disturbed
(i.e., by dry scraping, sanding, pressure blasting or burning) lead-based paint on residential,
commercial and public pre-1950 (224,797 units) and ninety-four percent is pre-1980 (307,954
units).  With this predominantly older housing stock, it can be assumed that the majority of
building exteriors have layers of lead-based paint, either as surface layers or underneath non-
lead paints.  DPH case investigations have measured exterior paints with lead content as high as
49% lead.  Half of the worst-case exterior paint samples measured by DPH were greater than
81,400 parts per million (or 8%) lead, sixteen times the definition of lead-based paint.  The
uncontrolled disturbance and removal of exterior lead-based paint is one of the major
contributors of lead to the San Francisco environment.  Furthermore, the close proximity of

Attachment 3



BUILDING INSPECTION COMMISSION
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS Page 2

8/10/99
c:\docs\less-often used\caas web design\nclsh\august 99 docs\san francisco ordinance.doc

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

buildings to one another in San Francisco, along with the small lot size typical of many residential
buildings, increases the risk of contamination of adjacent properties by lead paint debris.

3601.2 In the past, steel structures such as bridges, walkways, water towers,
billboards steel tanks and railway or roadway overpasses were painted with anti-corrosion paints
containing a high lead content.  Disturbance or removal of such paints without proper controls can
create a significant lead dust hazard to surrounding residential areas.

3601.3 Currently, the exterior surfaces of buildings are frequently prepared for new
painting by dry scraping, sanding, pressure blasting, or burning off the old paint.  These surface
preparation methods generate waste products that include large quantities of paint debris, paint
dust, and pressure blasting agents.  Depending on the concentration of lead in the paint, these
waste streams may constitute hazardous waste under state hazardous waste laws.  Currently,
most waste products generated by exterior surface preparation in San Francisco are not
contained and are instead discharged directly into the air, soil, and sewer system.

3601.4 City Departments receive at least one call per day from residents identifying
an uncontrolled exterior paint disturbance and/or removal in a residential neighborhood.  During
such a project, numerous small pieces of paint debris and sometimes the blasting agents are
deposited throughout the neighborhood—inside homes, on parked cars, on sidewalks, and in
back yards.  San Francisco children and pets have been poisoned with lead as a result of
uncontrolled exterior paint disturbance and removal.  Painters and other workers working without
personal protective equipment may also suffer health effects.  These persons can in turn transfer
lead dust from their work clothes to their children and their home environment.

3601.5 Uncontrolled exterior paint disturbance and removal, including surface
preparation, deposits lead and other metals on the ground, and often in stormwater and sewer
drains.  For example, when water blasting is used as a surface preparation or paint removal
method, the resulting wastewater may contain lead levels exceeding established pollution limits.
Once environmental contamination has occurred, the efforts and costs for cleaning up such wide-
spread damage are prohibitive.  Preventing the spread of paint debris and blasting agents is the
best way to eliminate this major source of lead contamination.

3601.6 Open-flame burning or torching of lead paint produces a lead fume in the
form of a fine particulate emission from the surface of the heated metal.  Once the particulate
cools, it settles as a non-visible solid lead contaminant in the environment.  Because burning
processes are extreme fire hazards and because lead fume contamination cannot be visually
assessed, it is difficult to design and verify appropriate containment and cleanup.  For these
reasons,  this ordinance prohibits acetylene and propane open-flame burning and torching.

3601.7 Currently, exterior paint disturbance and removal is subject to only minimal
regulation.  Employers of  workers performing paint work, regardless of the lead content level of



BUILDING INSPECTION COMMISSION
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS Page 3

8/10/99
c:\docs\less-often used\caas web design\nclsh\august 99 docs\san francisco ordinance.doc

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

the paint, must adhere to the Occupational Safety and Health standards promulgated by
Cal/OSHA.  Waste streams to soil and water are regulated after the lead has been released into
these environments.  The Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) governs the use
of approved blasting agents and the production of gross amounts of visible emissions, in
addition to industrial lead emissions.  Many projects that disturb or remove paint, including most
residential projects, do not generate emissions that exceed the BAAQMD visible emissions and
lead toxic air contaminant standards; nevertheless, these operations can contaminate the
worksite and the surrounding properties with toxic paint debris.  The Board intends to address
the hazards caused by uncontrolled exterior lead-based paint disturbance and removal, including
surface preparation, by establishing requirements governing these activities.))

((SECTION 3602. GOALS.

3602.1 The goals of this law are to:

3602.1.1 Ensure that persons performing exterior lead-based paint
disturbance or removal, including surface preparation, on residential, commercial, and
public buildings and steel structures use work practices that reduce environmental
contamination; and

3602.1.2 Reduce childhood lead poisoning and other dust-related health
effects in San Francisco caused by uncontrolled exterior lead-based paint disturbance and
removal, including surface preparation.))
/ / /

SECTION 3603.  DEFINITIONS.

3603.1. “Accredited Laboratory” means a laboratory which operates within the EPA
National Lead Laboratory Accreditation Program.

3603.2. “Adjacent Properties” means properties that adjoin the regulated area of the
property in question, including at the corners of lot lines.

3603.3. “Certified” means a process used by the State of California Department of Health
Services (DHS) and the US Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) to identify individuals who
have completed training and other requirements to permit the safe execution of lead risk
assessments and inspections, or lead hazard reduction and control work.  “Certified” includes
current “Interim Certification” by DHS, unless and until this status is modified by state legislation.

3603.4. “Containment Barriers” means measures that prevent the migration of lead paint
contaminants.  Containment barriers shall be at least as effective at protecting human health and
the environment as those contained in the most current HUD Guidelines.



BUILDING INSPECTION COMMISSION
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS Page 4

8/10/99
c:\docs\less-often used\caas web design\nclsh\august 99 docs\san francisco ordinance.doc

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

3603.5. “Contractor” means any person, whether or not in possession of a valid state
contractor’s license, who undertakes to or offers to undertake to or purports to have the capacity
to undertake to or submits a bid to, or does by himself or herself or by or through others, any
action that may or will disturb or remove paint.  For purpose of this Chapter, “Contractor” shall
also include subcontractors.

3603.6. “Disturb or Remove Paint” means any action that creates friction, pressure, heat
or a chemical reaction upon any lead-based paint on an exterior surface so as to abrade, loosen,
penetrate, cut through or eliminate paint from that surface.  This term shall include all demolition
and surface preparation activities that are performed upon an exterior surface containing lead-
based paint.
/ / /

3603.7. “Exterior” means the outside of a building or steel structure and the areas around
it within the boundaries of the property, including the outside of any detached structures, including
but not limited to, outside and common walls, stairways, fences, light wells, breezeways, sheds
and garages.

3603.8. “HEPA” means a High Efficiency Particulate Air Filter.

3603.9. “HUD Guidelines” means the most recent “Guidelines for Evaluation and
Control of Lead-Based Paint Hazards” promulgated by the United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD).

((3603.10 "Landlord" means an owner, lessor, or sublessor who receives or is entitled
to receive rent for the use or occupancy of any commercial or residential rental property in the
City and County of San Francisco, and the agent, representative or successor of any of the
foregoing.))

3603.((11))10. “Lead” means metallic lead and all inorganic and organic compounds of
lead.

3603.((12))11. “Lead-Based Paint” or “Lead Paint” means any paint, varnish, shellac or
other coating on surfaces with lead in excess of 1.0 mg/cm2 (milligrams per square centimeter)
as measured by x-ray fluorescence (XRF) detector or laboratory analysis or in excess of 0.5
percent by weight, also expressed as 5,000 ppm (parts per million), 5,000 µg/g (micrograms per
gram), or 5,000 mg/kg (milligrams per kilogram) as measured by laboratory analysis.

3603.((13))12. “Lead-Based Paint Testing” means testing of surfaces to determine the
presence of lead-based paint performed by an independent Certified Risk Assessor/Inspector, in



BUILDING INSPECTION COMMISSION
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS Page 5

8/10/99
c:\docs\less-often used\caas web design\nclsh\august 99 docs\san francisco ordinance.doc

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

accordance with the HUD Guidelines, and where testing includes bulk paint samples, such
samples are analyzed by an Accredited Laboratory.
/ / /

((3603.14 “Lead-Contaminated Dust” means surface dust that contains an area or
mass concentration of Lead in excess of 100 µg/ft2 (micrograms per square foot) on uncarpeted
floors, 500 µg/ft2 on interior window sills, and 800 µg/ft2 on exterior window sills and exterior
horizontal surfaces.))

((3603.15 “Lead Dust Testing” means tests conducted in accordance with the most
recent federal guidelines to determine the presence or absence of Lead-Contaminated Dust
within a defined area.))

((3603.16 “Lead-Contaminated Soil” means areas that contain total Lead in excess of
400 ppm (parts per million) in bare soil.))

((3603.17 “Lead Soil Testing” means tests conducted in accordance with the most
recent federal guidelines to determine the presence or absence of Lead-Contaminated Soil
within a defined area.))

((3603.18 “Lead Paint Contaminants” means substances containing lead paint which
are potentially hazardous to human health or the environment, including but not limited to paint
chips and paint-containing soil, debris, dust, abrasives, fumes and water.))

3603.13. “Owner” means the owner of a property or the owner’s  authorized agent.

3603.((19))14. “Person” means a natural person, his or her heirs, executors,
administrators or assigns, and also includes a municipal or state agency to the extent allowable
by law, a firm, joint stock company, business concern, association, partnership or corporation, its
or their successors or assigns, or the agent of any of the aforesaid.

3603.((20))15. “Prohibited Practices” means work practices prohibited under section
3605 of this Chapter.

3603.((21))16. “Responsible Party” means either (1) the owner of the property where the
owner or the owner’s employees or persons otherwise under the control of the owner are
performing the activities regulated under this Chapter; or (2) the owner and the contractor where
the owner has entered into a contract with another to carry out ((contractor is performing)) the
activities regulated under this Chapter.



BUILDING INSPECTION COMMISSION
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS Page 6

8/10/99
c:\docs\less-often used\caas web design\nclsh\august 99 docs\san francisco ordinance.doc

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

3603.((22))17. “Regulated Area” means an area in which work is being performed that
disturbs or removes paint, and to which access is restricted in order to prevent migration of paint
contaminants.  “Regulated area” shall also include any area contaminated with lead paint
contaminants as a result of a breach or lack of containment barriers or a violation of the
containment requirement set forth in section 3605.1.

3603.((23))18. “Steel Structure” means  any structure that is not a building and which has
exterior surfaces made of steel or other metal, such as bridges, billboards, walkways, water
towers, steel tanks and roadway or railway overpasses.

SECTION 3604. PROHIBITION.

3604.1. Generally.  No person shall disturb or remove lead paint, or in any other way
generate lead paint contaminants during demolition or work on the exterior of any existing ((
residential, commercial or public)) building((,)) or steel structure except in accordance with the
requirements of this Chapter.

3604.2. Exemptions.  This Chapter shall not apply to activities that disturb or remove
paint where those activities are being performed on buildings or steel structures on which
construction was completed after 1978, or on new construction.  For purposes of this Chapter, all
paint on the exterior of any building or steel structure on which the original construction was
completed prior to December 31, 1978, shall be presumed to be lead-based paint.  Any person
seeking to rebut this presumption shall establish through lead-based paint testing, or other
means satisfactory to the Director, that the paint on the building or steel structure in question is
not lead-based paint.

3604.3.  De Minimis Notification Exemption.  Any person performing work subject to
this Chapter who disturbs or removes less than ten (10) square feet of lead-based paint in total
shall not be required to comply with the notification requirements set forth in Section 3606 of this
Chapter.

SECTION 3605. PERFORMANCE STANDARDS.

3605.1.  Containment Barriers. Any person performing work subject to this Chapter
shall establish containment barriers at least as effective at protecting human health and the
environment as those contained in the HUD Guidelines or the Lead Paint Removal Guide
published by the Steel Structure Painting Council, whichever is applicable.

3605.2.  Prohibited Practices. No person performing work subject to this Chapter shall
use prohibited practices, including but not limited to:



BUILDING INSPECTION COMMISSION
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS Page 7

8/10/99
c:\docs\less-often used\caas web design\nclsh\august 99 docs\san francisco ordinance.doc

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

3605.2.1 Acetylene or propane burning and torching;

3605.2.2 Scraping, sanding or grinding without containment barriers or a
HEPA local vacuum exhaust tool;

3605.2.3 Hydroblasting or high-pressure wash without containment barriers;

3605.2.4 Abrasive blasting or sandblasting without containment barriers or a
HEPA local vacuum exhaust tool;

3605.2.5 Heat guns operating above 1,100 degrees Fahrenheit;

3605.3. Migration.  Any person performing work subject to this Chapter shall make all
reasonable efforts to prevent migration of lead paint contaminants beyond containment barriers
during the course of the work.

3605.4.  Visible Lead Paint Contaminants. The responsible party performing work
subject to this Chapter shall make all reasonable efforts to remove all visible lead paint
contaminants from all regulated areas of the property prior to completion of the work.

SECTION 3606. NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS.

3606.1. Notifying Bidders. In any instance where a property owner or contractor is
requesting bids for work that is subject to this Chapter, the property owner or contractor shall
notify all bidders of any paint inspection reports verifying the presence ((or absence)) of any lead-
based paint in the regulated area of the proposed project.

3606.2. Contents of Notice. Except as otherwise authorized by this Chapter, prior to
the commencement of work subject to this Chapter, the ((responsible party)) owner or contractor
shall provide written notice to the Director, either in person, by U.S. Mail or by fax, of the following:

3606.2.1. the location of the project;

3606.2.2. the ((nature and approximate square footage of the painted surface
being disturbed and/or removed)) scope of work;

3606.2.3. the methods and tools for paint disturbance and/or removal;
3606.2.4. the approximate age of the building;
3606.2.5. the anticipated job start and completion dates for work subject to this

Chapter;



BUILDING INSPECTION COMMISSION
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS Page 8

8/10/99
c:\docs\less-often used\caas web design\nclsh\august 99 docs\san francisco ordinance.doc

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

((3606.2.6. whether the responsible party has reason to know or presume that
lead-based paint is present;))

3606.2.((7))6. whether the building is residential or non-residential, and
whether it is owner-occupied or rental property((, and the approximate number of dwelling units, if
any, on the property));

3606.2.((8))7. the dates by which the responsible party has or will fulfill any
tenant or adjacent property notification requirements as described in sections 3606.4 and
3606.5 below; and

3606.2.((9))8. the name, address, telephone number, and if available, pager
number, of the party who will perform the specified work.

3606.3. Contents of Notice.  The Director shall make available to the public a
form that complies with the requirements of section 3606.2 and contains blank spaces for the
required information.

3606.4.  Sign When Containment is Required. ((Where containment is
required to prevent migration of lead paint contaminants to another property, n)) Not later than the
commencement of work subject to this Chapter, the ((responsible party)) owner, or where the
owner has entered into a contract with a contractor to perform work subject to this Chapter, the
contractor shall post signs in a location or locations clearly visible to the adjacent properties
stating the following:

LEAD WORK IN PROGRESS
PUBLIC ACCESS TO WORK AREA PROHIBITED

POSTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH BUILDING CODE SECTION 3606

3606.5.  Requirements for Sign When Containment is Required. The sign required
by section 3606.4 shall be not less than 24 inches square, and shall be in large boldface capital
letters no less than one-half inch in size.  The Director shall make available to the public a form
that complies with these requirements and states the required information in English, Chinese
and Spanish. The sign required by this section shall remain in place until the work subject to this
Chapter has been completed.  Where it is not possible to post signs in a conspicuous location or
locations clearly visible to the adjacent properties, the ((responsible party)) owner, or where the
owner has entered into a contract with a contractor to perform work subject to this Chapter, the
contractor shall provide the notice in written form, such as a letter or memorandum, to the
occupants of adjacent properties.



BUILDING INSPECTION COMMISSION
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS Page 9

8/10/99
c:\docs\less-often used\caas web design\nclsh\august 99 docs\san francisco ordinance.doc

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

3606.6.  Notice ((by Landlord)) to Tenants. Where ((the responsible party is a
landlord, a person or persons in the employ of a landlord, or where a landlord has entered into a
contract with a contractor to perform work subject to this Chapter)) work subject to the
requirements of this Chapter is to be performed on a residential property occupied by one or
more tenants, not less than three business days before work subject to this Chapter is to
commence, the ((landlord)) owner shall provide the following information:

3606.6.1.  ((Required)) Contents of Notice ((To Tenants)). Except as may be
otherwise inconsistent with state law, provide written notice to tenants of the building on which the
work is being performed that lead-related work is being performed.  This notice shall be in the
form of a sign, letter, or memorandum; and shall prominently state the following:

“Work is scheduled to be performed beginning [date] on this property that may disturb or
remove lead-based paint.  The persons performing this work are required to follow state
and local laws regulating work with lead-based paint.  You may obtain information
regarding these laws, or report any suspected violations of these laws, by calling the
Department of Building Inspection at 558-6598.  The owner of this property is also
required to provide tenants with a copy of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
pamphlet entitled Protect Your Family From Lead-Based Paint in Your Home, unless the
owner has previously provided this pamphlet to the tenant.”

The Director shall make available to the public a form that states the required information in
English, Chinese and Spanish.

3606.6.2.  Availability of Pamphlet. ((Make known, and available upon
request)) The owner shall provide to all tenants in the building, the U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency pamphlet entitled Protect Your Family From Lead-Based Paint in Your Home, except
that an owner ((landlord)) shall not be required to comply with this requirement with respect to
tenants to whom the owner ((landlord)) has previously provided a copy of the pamphlet.

3606.7.  Notice by Contractor. Where work subject to the requirements of this Chapter
is being performed by ((the responsible party is)) a contractor, the ((responsible party)) contractor
shall, at least ((72 hours)) three business days prior to the commencement of work on residential
property subject to this Chapter, notify the property owner of potential lead hazards during the
project by distributing the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency pamphlet entitled Protect Your
Family From Lead in Your Home.

3606.8.  Early Commencement of Work by Owner. A property owner may commence,
or may authorize a contractor to commence, work subject to this Chapter less than three
business days after providing notices required in sections ((3606.2, 3606.4)) 3606.6 and 3606.7
above when the property owner determines that such work must be commenced immediately in
order to correct an emergency condition such that a delay would pose an immediate threat to the
safety or well-being of the building’s occupants, or to correct life-safety hazards.



BUILDING INSPECTION COMMISSION
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS Page 10

8/10/99
c:\docs\less-often used\caas web design\nclsh\august 99 docs\san francisco ordinance.doc

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

3606.9.  Early Commencement of Work Requested by Tenant. Upon written request
of tenants, ((the landlord)) an owner may commence or authorize a contractor to commence, work
subject to this Chapter less than three business days after providing notices required in sections
((3606.2, 3606.4,)) 3606.6 and 3606.7 above.

((SECTION 3606.10.  Notice of Lead Contaminated Dust or Soil. Except as may be
otherwise inconsistent with state law, any property owner that has performed lead dust testing or
lead soil testing in a regulated area shall provide written notice to tenants of the property of the
presence of any lead-contaminated dust or lead-contaminated soil verified by the test results
within five business days of receipt of written results.  This notice shall be in the form of a sign or
signs clearly visible from locations outside the regulated areas and shall prominently state the
following:

WARNING: Results of tests for lead contamination received by the owner
of this property on [date] indicate the presence of lead-contaminated [dust
or soil] in [state area].  For more information, contact [property owner or
representative at xxx-xxxx].  Removal of this sign does not necessarily
mean that the lead contamination has been eliminated.

The Director shall make available to the public a form that complies with the above requirements
and restates the generic information required by the notice in Chinese and Spanish.))

((SECTION 3606.11.  Removal of Notice of Lead Contaminated Dust or Soil. The
owner may remove such signs when: (1) all visible lead paint contaminants have been removed
from the regulated area in accordance with section 3605.4, prior to the completion of the work; or
(2) upon receipt of results of additional lead dust or lead soil testing indicating that no lead-
contaminated dust or lead-contaminated soil remains in the regulated area.))

SECTION 3607. INSPECTION AND SAMPLING.

3607.1.  Authority to Inspect. The Director is authorized to inspect the exterior of any
building or steel structure upon which work subject to the requirements of this Chapter is being
performed for the purpose of determining whether the work is being carried out in accordance
with the requirements of this Chapter.  This inspection authority shall be exercised in accordance
with section 104.2.3 of this Code ((only at reasonable hours, and entry shall be made onto
property only with the consent of the owner or tenants thereof, or with a proper inspection warrant
or other remedy provided by law to secure entry)).

3607.2.  Response to Complaint. Upon receiving a citizen complaint, the Director shall
(1) review the complaint; (2) determine whether a ((responsible party has filed a)) valid
notification form has been filed for the property in compliance with the requirements of Section



BUILDING INSPECTION COMMISSION
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS Page 11

8/10/99
c:\docs\less-often used\caas web design\nclsh\august 99 docs\san francisco ordinance.doc

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

3606.2; and (3) where deemed necessary by the Director, conduct an inspection at the job site
within ((48 hours)) two business days to determine the validity of the complaint.

3607.3.  Evaluation of Complaint. When determining the validity of a complaint, if the
Director is not able to observe the actual performance of any work practices constituting
violations of the performance standards of Section 3605, the Director shall investigate and
consider the following:

3607.3.1 the containment measures and work tools being used by the
responsible party;

3607.3.2 the color(s) of paint being disturbed or removed by the responsible
party;

3607.3.3 the color(s), quantities, nature, and locations of alleged visible lead
paint contaminants;

3607.3.4 the colors, locations, and conditions of paint on adjacent properties,
to determine if such paint could be a source of the alleged visible lead paint
contaminants; and

3607.3.5 any work being performed on adjacent properties which could be a
source of the alleged visible lead paint contaminants.

3607.3.6 any other relevant evidence that the Director determines in the 
exercise of his or her discretion would help to determine whether a violation of 
this Chapter has occurred.
3607.4.  Authority of Director to Sample. The Director or the Director of the

Department of Public Health may also collect paint, dust, and soil samples from the property
where the work is being performed and from adjacent properties in order to determine the validity
of a complaint.

SECTION 3608. ENFORCEMENT.  The Director is authorized to make use of all
enforcement authority authorized by law, including, but not limited to, the authority set forth in
sections 102 and 103 of this Code to enforce against any violation of this Chapter.  Where the
owner and the contractor are both responsible parties, the Director may proceed against either
the owner or the contractor, or against both.  The Director is further authorized, pursuant to
Chapter 17 of this Code, following issuance of a Notice of Violation, to require as a condition of
resuming work, that the responsible party conduct a special inspection by a certified risk
assessor in order to establish that the regulated area is in compliance with this Chapter.



BUILDING INSPECTION COMMISSION
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS Page 12

8/10/99
c:\docs\less-often used\caas web design\nclsh\august 99 docs\san francisco ordinance.doc

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

3608.1  Stop Work Orders.  The Director shall have the power to stop any work that is
disturbing or removing lead paint or otherwise generating lead paint contaminants in violation of
this Chapter or the construction, alteration or repairs of any steel structure or building subject to
the requirements of this Chapter when, in the opinion of the Director, such work is being done in
violation of any of the provisions of this Chapter and to order all work to be stopped by notice in
writing served upon any persons engaged in the doing or causing such work to be done.  The
work shall be stopped immediately and shall not be resumed without authorization.

SECTION 3609.  PENALTIES.  In addition to any other penalties authorized by law, the
Director may impose the following penalties for violations of this Chapter.

3609.1.  Administrative Penalties. The Director may impose administrative penalties
for violations of this Chapter in accordance with the following procedure:

3609.1.1.  Notice. The Director shall notify the responsible party ((in violation of))
to whom a Notice of Violation has been issued that he or she has ((72 hours)) up to three
business days to correct or otherwise ((remedy)) abate the violation or be subject to the
imposition of administrative penalties.  For those violations that create an immediate danger to
health or safety and violations of notification requirements pursuant to section 3606, the
responsible party to whom a Notice of Violation has been issued shall immediately ((remedy))
abate the violation or be subject to the imposition of administrative penalties. In circumstances
where the Director is aware that there is more than one responsible party, the Director shall
make reasonable efforts to give notice to all responsible parties.

3609.1.2.  Limits. Administrative penalties assessed against a violator pursuant
to section 3609.1.1 shall not exceed $((1,000)) 500 per day per violation.

3609.1.3.  Additional Fees. In addition to the administrative penalty
assessed pursuant to sections 3609.1.1 and 3609.1.2, the Director may assess additional fees
to cover the reasonable costs incurred in enforcing the administrative penalty.

3609.1.4.  Length of Penalties. Penalties and fees assessed under sections
3609.1.1 and 3609.1.3 shall continue to accrue against the responsible party or parties until the
violation of this Chapter is ((corrected)) abated or otherwise remedied in the judgment of the
Director.

3609.1.5.  Collection. The Director, or his or her designated representative,
is responsible for charging and collecting any penalty or fee assessed pursuant to this section.
The Director shall notify the responsible party or parties in writing of the cost of the penalty and
fee and declare that such costs are due and payable to the Treasurer of the City and County of
San Francisco.  If the penalty and fee are not paid within 30 days of this notice, the Director shall



BUILDING INSPECTION COMMISSION
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS Page 13

8/10/99
c:\docs\less-often used\caas web design\nclsh\august 99 docs\san francisco ordinance.doc

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

request that the Tax Collector to pursue collection of the penalty and fee, up to and including
imposition of a special assessment lien in accordance with the requirements of Article XX of
Chapter 10 of the San Francisco Administrative Code (commencing with section 10.230).

3609.1.6.  Use of Penalty. Any administrative penalty and fee received by the
Treasurer of the City and County of San Francisco shall be placed in the Building Inspection Fund
and used to offset the Department’s costs in connection with the administration and enforcement
of this Chapter.

3609.1.7.  Review of Imposition of Penalty. Any person that is designated as
the a party responsible for a violation or is subject to an administrative penalty or fee may seek
administrative review of the designation or the assessment of the penalty or fee.  Administrative
review shall be initiated by the filing of an appeal with Director that specifies in detail the basis for
contesting the designation of the responsible party or the assessment of the penalty or fee.  Such
appeal shall be filed within 15 business days of the imposition of the penalty or fee.  Within ten
days of the receipt of the appeal, unless extended by mutual agreement of the affected parties,
the Director shall cause a hearing to be held before a hearing officer.  The decision of the
hearing officer shall be final.

3609.2.  Alternative Penalty.
3609.2.1.  Scope. A ((person)) responsible party in violation of this Chapter may

elect to attend a training course approved by the state Department of Health Services in lead-
related construction supervision and project monitoring in lieu of paying an administrative penalty
pursuant to section 3609.1.  The Director shall require proof of attendance and satisfactory
completion of the course, including certification from the instructor or provider of the course
before dismissing the penalty assessed against the person.

3609.2.2.  Applicability. The election set forth in section 3609.2.1 shall only be
available to persons who have not previously completed such a training course, and who have not
been previously found by the Director to be in violation of this Chapter.

SECTION 3610.  REMEDIES AND ENFORCEMENT BY CITY OFFICIALS.

3610.1.  No Obligation by City. In undertaking the enforcement of this ordinance, the
City and County of San Francisco is assuming an undertaking only to promote the general
welfare.  It is not assuming, nor is it imposing on its officers and employees, an obligation for
breach of which it is liable in money damages to any person who claims that such breach
proximately caused injury.

3610.2.  Discretionary Duty. Subject to the limitations of due process, notwithstanding
any other provision of this code whenever the words "shall" or "must" are used in establishing a



BUILDING INSPECTION COMMISSION
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS Page 14

8/10/99
c:\docs\less-often used\caas web design\nclsh\august 99 docs\san francisco ordinance.doc

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

responsibility or duty of the City, its elected or appointed officers, employees, or agents, it is the
legislative intent that such words establish a discretionary responsibility or duty requiring the
exercise of judgment and discretion.

SECTION 3611.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase
of this Chapter is for any reason held to be unconstitutional, invalid or ineffective by any court of
competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the remaining
portions of this Article.  The Board of Supervisors declares that it would have passed each
section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Chapter irrespective of the fact that any
portion of this Chapter could be declared unconstitutional, invalid or ineffective.

Section 2.  The Board of Supervisors finds that:
(a) Lead poisoning is preventable.  Childhood lead poisoning is caused by children

ingesting lead from their environment.  From 1991 through 1996, 459 children under the age of
six received services from the Department of Public Health (DPH) in response to diagnosed lead
poisoning. With the elimination of leaded gasoline, the major source of lead in the environment in
San Francisco comes from deteriorated (i.e., peeling, chipping) and disturbed (i.e., by dry
scraping, sanding, pressure blasting or burning) lead-based paint on residential, commercial and
public buildings.  Sixty-eight percent of San Francisco’s housing stock is pre-1950 (224,797
units) and ninety-four percent is pre-1980 (307,954 units).  With this predominantly older housing
stock, it can be assumed that the majority of building exteriors have layers of lead-based paint,
either as surface layers or underneath non-lead paints.  DPH case investigations have measured
exterior paints with lead content as high as 49% lead.  Half of the worst-case exterior paint
samples measured by DPH were greater than 81,400 parts per million (or 8%) lead, sixteen
times the definition of lead-based paint.  The uncontrolled disturbance and removal of exterior
lead-based paint is one of the major contributors of lead to the San Francisco environment.
Furthermore, the close proximity of buildings to one another in San Francisco, along with the
small lot size typical of many residential buildings, increases the risk of contamination of adjacent
properties by lead paint debris.

(b) In the past, steel structures such as bridges, walkways, water towers, billboards steel
tanks and railway or roadway overpasses were painted with anti-corrosion paints containing a
high lead content.  Disturbance or removal of such paints without proper controls can create a
significant lead dust hazard to surrounding residential areas.

(c) Currently, the exterior surfaces of buildings are frequently prepared for new painting by
dry scraping, sanding, pressure blasting, or burning off the old paint.  These surface preparation
methods generate waste products that include large quantities of paint debris, paint dust, and
pressure blasting agents.  Depending on the concentration of lead in the paint, these waste
streams may constitute hazardous waste under state hazardous waste laws.  Currently, most
waste products generated by exterior surface preparation in San Francisco are not contained
and are instead discharged directly into the air, soil, and sewer system.

(d) City Departments receive at least one call per day from residents identifying an
uncontrolled exterior paint disturbance and/or removal in a residential neighborhood.  During



BUILDING INSPECTION COMMISSION
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS Page 15

8/10/99
c:\docs\less-often used\caas web design\nclsh\august 99 docs\san francisco ordinance.doc

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

such a project, numerous small pieces of paint debris and sometimes the blasting agents are
deposited throughout the neighborhood—inside homes, on parked cars, on sidewalks, and in
back yards.  San Francisco children and pets have been poisoned with lead as a result of
uncontrolled exterior paint disturbance and removal.  Painters and other workers working without
personal protective equipment may also suffer health effects.  These persons can in turn transfer
lead dust from their work clothes to their children and their home environment.

(e) Uncontrolled exterior paint disturbance and removal, including surface preparation,
deposits lead and other metals on the ground, and often in stormwater and sewer drains.  For
example, when water blasting is used as a surface preparation or paint removal method, the
resulting wastewater may contain lead levels exceeding established pollution limits.  Once
environmental contamination has occurred, the efforts and costs for cleaning up such wide-
spread damage are prohibitive.  Preventing the spread of paint debris and blasting agents is the
best way to eliminate this major source of lead contamination.

(f) Open-flame burning or torching of lead paint produces a lead fume in the form of a fine
particulate emission from the surface of the heated metal.  Once the particulate cools, it settles
as a non-visible solid lead contaminant in the environment.  Because burning processes are
extreme fire hazards and because lead fume contamination cannot be visually assessed, it is
difficult to design and verify appropriate containment and cleanup.  For these reasons,  this
ordinance prohibits acetylene and propane open-flame burning and torching.

(g) Currently, exterior paint disturbance and removal is subject to only minimal regulation.
Employers of  workers performing paint work, regardless of the lead content level of the paint,
must adhere to the Occupational Safety and Health standards promulgated by Cal/OSHA.
Waste streams to soil and water are regulated after the lead has been released into these
environments.  The Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) governs the use of
approved blasting agents and the production of gross amounts of visible emissions, in addition
to industrial lead emissions.  Many projects that disturb or remove paint, including most
residential projects, do not generate emissions that exceed the BAAQMD visible emissions and
lead toxic air contaminant standards; nevertheless, these operations can contaminate the
worksite and the surrounding properties with toxic paint debris.  The Board intends to address
the hazards caused by uncontrolled exterior lead-based paint disturbance and removal, including
surface preparation, by establishing requirements governing these activities.

Section 3.  The goals of this Ordinance are to:
(a) Ensure that persons performing exterior lead-based paint disturbance or removal,

including surface preparation, on residential, commercial, and public buildings and steel
structures use work practices that reduce environmental contamination; and

(b) Reduce childhood lead poisoning and other dust-related health effects in San
Francisco caused by uncontrolled exterior lead-based paint disturbance and removal, including
surface preparation.

APPROVED AS TO FORM:



BUILDING INSPECTION COMMISSION
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS Page 16

8/10/99
c:\docs\less-often used\caas web design\nclsh\august 99 docs\san francisco ordinance.doc

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

LOUISE H. RENNE
City Attorney

By:________________________________
William Chan
Deputy City Attorney



 



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Upcoming Workshops 

Scheduled Dates 
 

September 29 Operating Standards for Mini-Dorms and Group Living Accommodations 

October 6 Stanford Study: Electronic Control Weapons 

October 27 Five-Year Paving Plan Update 

November 3 Climate Action Plan Update/Drought Update 

November 17 Business License Tax on Rental Property (Tentative) 

December 1 Affordable Housing 

December 15 
Legislative Update: Senator Loni Hancock & Assemblyman Tony Thurmond 
Economic Development Update 

Unscheduled Workshops 

1. Mental Health Commission Referral - Crisis Response 

2. Council Referrals and Prioritization Process  

3. Strategic Planning Framework (January 2016) 

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
5a



 
 
 

 

City Council Referrals to the Agenda Committee 

1. Regulating Sidewalks and Public Spaces (from June 30, 2015) 

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
5b



Address Board/
Commission

Appeal Period 
Ends 

 Determination 
on Appeal 
Submitted

Public
Hearing

NOD – Notices of Decision
2516 Durant Ave (combine full service & quick service restaurants) ZAB 10/2/2015
1151 Sixth St (Urban Adamah) ZAB 10/2/2015

Appeals Submitted 

Public Hearings Scheduled
2115 San Pablo Ave (expansion of alcoholic beverage service) ZAB 10/13/2015
824 University Ave (Mixed Use Building) ZAB 10/27/2015
2631 Durant Ave (Durant Apartments) ZAB 11/17/2015

Remanded to ZAB or LPC

Notes

Last Updated: 9/23/15

CITY CLERK DEPARTMENT
WORKING CALENDAR FOR SCHEDULING LAND USE MATTERS

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
5c



 


	09-28 Agenda.pdf
	09-21 Minutes
	Draft 10-13 Agenda
	Draft Item 02 Approval of Three Additional
	Draft Item 03 Urging the State Legislature
	Draft Item 04 Endorse the Internet for All
	Draft Item 05 Hate Crime Prevention
	Draft Item 06 Proclamation in Honor
	Draft Item 07 City Manager Referral Constitutional
	Draft Item 08 City Manager Referral Support
	Draft Item 09 Supporting the Exoneration
	Draft Item 11a Berkeley Lead Poison
	Att 5a - Upcoming Workshops
	Att 5b - Council Referrals
	Att 5c - Land Use Calendar



